Dolores, Colorado

AGENDA

DOLORES COLORADO
TOWN BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MARCH 13™, 2023, 6:30 P.M.
THE MEETING WILL BE HELD AT TOWN HALL 420 CENTRAL AVENUE.

IF YOU WISH TO ATTEND VIRTUALLY, PLEASE VISIT THE TOWN WEBSITE UNDER GOVERNMENT TOWN BOARD MEETING
FOR THE ZOOM LINK

https://townofdolores.colorado.gov

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. IDENTIFICATION OF ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

6.CITIZENS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: This is an opportunity for Citizens to address the Board at this
time or during a Public Hearing. Each Person will have 5 minutes. The Town Board encourages public
comment by the following sources: Live at the Town Hall, virtually via ZOOM (see the Town Website for
the link), or by submitting your comments, via email, to the Town Clerk at tammy@townofdolores.com
any time before the dated Board meeting.

7. ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA: The Consent Agenda is intended to allow the
Board by a single motion approve matters that are considered routine or non-controversial. Here will
be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board Member requests an item to be removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately. Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be
Considered under specific Agenda item numbers.

7.1 Minutes from: February 13th, 2023, Board meeting

7.2 Minutes from: February 27", 2023, Board Workshop/Meeting.
7.3 Proceedings for the month of February 2022

7.4 Liguor License Renewal for a Retail Liquor Store: GST Liquors Inc.

8. REMOVED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:



9. STAFF REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS:

(For the record The Building Official, and Public Works have submitted reports to the packet).
9.1 Managers’ Report: Manager Ken Charles
9.2 Sheriffs’ Report: Sheriff Steve Nowlin
9.3 Attorney’s Report: Attorney Jon Kelly
9.4 Treasurers Report: Tricia Gibson

10. ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD BUSINESS:

10.1 Discussion/Presentation Resolution Draft/MOU: Authorizing the Town Manager to enter into
an agreement with ONWARD a legacy foundation DBA Lost Canton Bike and Skate Park Committee to plan
and fundraise for the construction of a bike park in Joe Rowell Park.

10.2 Discussion: Flood preparedness.

10.3 Discussion on Economic Development

10.4 Discussion: Dolores Community Center: Proposal for the Town of Dolores to enter into an
agreement with the Dolores Community Center Association, for property lease located at 400 Riverside
Avenue (The Community Center}.

11. BOARD/COMAMNSSIONS:
11.1 Parks/Playground Advisory Committee: Report on GOCO de-briefing conversation
11.2 Planning and Zoning Committee:
11.3 Attainable Housing Task Force:

12.0UTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS:
12.1 Chamber of Commerce: Susan Lisak
12.2 Montezuma County Commissioner: Jim Candelaria

13. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

13.1 Public Hearing: Ordinance 563 Series 2023: Amending Title 5 of the Town of Dolores Code,
pertaining to business licenses.

14. ACTION/APPROVAL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS:

14.1 Action/Approval Second/Final Reading of Ordinance 563 Series 2023: amending Title 5 of the
Dolores Municipal Code pertaining to business licenses.

14.2 Action/Approval Resolution R522 Series 2023: Accepting the award of the Colorado
Department of Transportation Revitalizing Main Street Opportunity 2 (small grants) Program Grant.

15. TRUSTEES REPORTS AND ACTIONS:

16. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS FOR: March 27", 2023, Board Meeting. No workshop will be held.



17. ADJOURNMENT:



(\,oNSE.NT J(GEMDA

' Doleres, Colorado)

AGENDA

DOLORES COLORADO
TOWN BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FEBRUARY 13™, 2023, 6:30 P.M.
THE MEETING WILL BE HELD AT TOWN HALL 420 CENTRAL AVENUE.

IFYOU WISH TO ATTEND VIRTUALLY, PLEASE VISIT THE TOWN WEBSITE UNDER GOVERNMENT TOWN BOARD MEETING
FOR THE ZOOM LINK

https://townofdolores.colorado.gov

3. CALLTO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

‘3. ROLL CALL

4, ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. IDENTIFICATION OF ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

6.CITIZENS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: This is an opportunity for Citizens to address the Board at this
time or during a Public Hearing. Each Person will have 5 minutes. The Town Board encourages public
comment by the following sources: Live at the Town Hall, virtually via ZOOM (see the Town Website for
the link), or by submitting your comments, via email, to the Town Clerk at tammy@townofdolores.com
any time before the dated Board meeting.

7. ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA: The Consent Agenda is intended to allow the
Board by a single motion approve matters that are considered routine or non-controversial. Here will
be no separate discussion of these items uniess a Board Member requests an item to be removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately. Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be
Considered under specific Agenda item numbers.

7.1 Minutes from: January 9th, 2023, Board meeting
7.2 Minutes from: January 23", 2023, Board meeting
7.3 Proceedings for the month of January 2023

8. REMOVED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

9. STAFF REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS:



(For the record The Treasurer, Building Official, and Public Works have submitted reports to the
packet).
9.1 Managers’ Report: Manager Ken Charles
9.2 Sheriffs’ Report: Sheriff Steve Nowlin
9.3 Attorney’s Report: Attorney Jon Kelly

10. ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD BUSINESS:
10.1 Discussion Town Project Updates:
A JRP Master Plan/Bike & Skate Park Committee Presentation
B Affordable Housing
10.2 Discussion: Highway 145 Snow removal
10.3 Action: Declaring a vacancy for the Town Treasurer position.

11. BOARD/COMMISSIONS:
11.1 Parks/Playground Advisory Committee:
11.2 Planning and Zoning Committee:
11.3 Attainable Housing Task Force:

12.0UTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS:
12.1 Chamber of Commerce: Susan Lisak
12.2 Montezuma County Commissioner: Jim Candelaria

13. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None at this time

14. ACTION/APPROVAL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS:

14.1 Action/Approval Resolution R519 Series 2623: Approving the transfer of Galioping Goose NO. 5

from the Town of Dolores to the Galloping Goose Historical Society.

14.2 Action/Approval Resolution R520 Series 2023; in support of a site evaluation for 19" Street
properties for affordable housing development.

14.3 Action/Approval Ordinance 562 Series 2023, first reading; amending Title 12 of the Dolores
Municipal Code to regulate the public use of the Town’s Escarpment Properties.

14.4 Action/Approval Ordinance 563 Series 2023, first reading, amending Titl
Municipal Code pertaining to business licenses.

5 of the Dolores

g

15. TRUSTEES REPORTS AND ACTIONS:

16. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS FOR:

17. ADJOURNMENT:



Dolores, Colorado

MINUTES

DOLORES COLORADO
TOWN BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FEBRUARY 13™, 2023, 6:30 P.M.
THE MEETING WAS HELD AT TOWN HALL 420 CENTRAL AVENUE.

TO VIEW THE MEETING RECORDING, PLEASE VISIT THE TOWN WEBSITE UNDER GOVERNMENT TOWN BOARD MEETINGS

https://townofdolores.colorado.gov

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Reeves opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL Board Member present: Mayor Leigh Reeves, Trustees Duvall “Val” Truelsen, Kaiin Grigg,
Sheila Wheeler, Mark Youngquist, and Chris Holkestad. Trustee Andy Lewis appeared virtually.
3.1 Staff Present: Manager Ken Charles, Clerk Tammy Neely, Building Official David Doudy, and Attorney
Jon Kelly.

4. ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Trustee Youngquist moved to approve the agenda, seconded by
Trustee Holkestad. Motion was approved unanimously.

5. IDENTIFICATION OF ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. No conflicts were identified.

6. CITIZENS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: This is an opportunity for Citizens to address the Board at this
time or during a Public Hearing. Each Person will have 5 minutes. The Town Board encourages public
comment by the following sources: Live at the Town Hall, virtually via ZOOM (see the Town Website for
the link}, or by submitting your comments, via email, to the Town Clerk at tammy@townofdolores.com
any time before the dated Board meeting. There was no comment from the public.

7. ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA: The Consent Agenda is intended to allow the
Board by a single motion approve matters that are considered routine or non-controversial. Here will
be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board Member requests an item to be removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately. ltems removed from the Consent Agenda will be
Considered under specific Agenda item numbers.

7.1 Minutes from: January 9th, 2023, Board meeting
7.2 Minutes from: January 23, 2023, Board meeting
7.3 Proceedings for the month of January 2023
Trustee Wheeler moved to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Trustee Truelsen. Motion passed



unanimously.
8. REMOVED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: No items were removed
9. STAFF REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS:

(For the record The Treasurer, Building Official, and Public Works have submitted reports to the
packet).

9.1 Managers’ Report: Manager Ken Charles updated the Board on the upcoming agenda. Other

updates are as follows:

e Avirtual walk through with Eric Simmons from the Dolores Fire District with prospective vendors
(5) interested in in bidding on the Early Warning Sirens. The deadline for submitting bids is
February 18", 2023.

o Notice from the Federal Emergency Management Agency sent notice that they have approve a
grant for $59,240.00 to install a backup generator at the Water Treatment Plant. The Towns match
budgeted will be $17,000.00 included in the 2023 projects.

e Anagreement was signed with Colorado Water Resources and Power Authority for a $10,000.00
planning grant that will allow SGM Engineers to produce the Project Needs Assessment. If the
Town chooses not to pursue a foan, the town wiil NOT be required to pay back the grant.

e January Retreat: The Board discussed whether the town should become involved on economic
development and what form it should take. The Board expressed interest in being active in
developing the economy. A workshop is scheduled on February 27, 2023, for Region 9.

e A payment was made to Region 9 for $2109.00. The amount reflects a $1300.00 increase from last
year due to the merger of the Southwest Colorado Council of Government (SWCCOG) with Region
9 in 202%. Manager Charles encouraged the Board to look at Region 9 as an effective organization
for economic development.

o Fishing is Fun Project: The Aquahab consultant has informed the Manager that she is unable to
finish the project due to an iliness in the family. This is a significant setback as this type of river
habitat restoration is a specialized skill set and she had thirty years’ experience. She did leave a
few contacts.

8.2 Sheriffs’ Report: Sheriff Steve Nowlin was unavailable but did submit a report for calls of service.

9.3 Attorney’s Report: Attorney Jon Kelly will speak later in the agenda on several items.

10. ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD BUSINESS:
10.1 Discussion Town Project Updates:

A JRP Master Plan/Bike & Skate Park Committee Presentation. Manager Charles reviewed the
funding for the IRP nroject and hudget details. A grant application was made to GOCQ for the amount of
1,000,000.00. The total estimated cost $1,446,748.00. A project budget was submitted in the packet for
the record. Jacob Carloni presented to the Board a projection of the Bike Park.

B Affordable Housing: The Dolores Housing Taskforce met on January 31, 2023. The Task Force
viewed the presentation and recommendations of David Bruce, Rural Homes project Manager. The



presentation consisted of three town owned sites which were 19%" street, Hillside, and 19 and Railroad
along with the former Forest Maintenance yard east of Town. Manager Charles has scheduled a meeting
with Elizabeth Garvin the Land Use Code Planner for February 22", 2023. The Task Force will be visiting
Norwood Colorado to see the units that are currently being built.

10.2 Discussion: Highway 145 Snow removal: Manager Charles discussed options for snow plowing
highway 145, with CDOT Programs Manager John Palmer. Several towns have an agreement with CDOT to
plow the snow to the middle of the highway. It would be the Towns responsibility to remove it from the
middle within a twenty-four-hour period. This would result in back streets being plowed at a much later
time. Manager Charles asked CDOT if they could move the snow to the other side of the highway to keep
the bike lane clear, CDOT would need the temperatures to be above freezing as the system moves snow to
allow for melting. Other snow removal points: If the Town hired contracted snow removal it would
expensive. A private contract would consist of two dump trucks and a front-end loader for 2-3- days. This
would cost $2800.00/day minimum. Manager Charles and Public Works Director Randy McGuire
recommend not to pursue this optiont this time.

10.3 Action: Declaring a vacancy for the Town Treasurer position. Treasurer/Finance Manager Tricia
Gibson has announced that she will be vacating her position some time in March.

11. BOARD/COMMISSIONS:
ili.1 Parks/Playground Advisery Committea: [he minutes for the january 12, 2023, was subraitted
for the record.
11.2 Planning and Zoning Committee: The Planning and Zoning Committee minutes were submitted
for the record as well as a supplemental report from Chair Linda Robinson.
11.3 Attainable Housing Task Force: Was previously visited.

12.0UTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS:
12.1 Chamber of Commerce: Susan Lisak was not available for comment.
12.2 Montezuma County Commissioner: Jim Candelaria was not available for comment.

13. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None at this time

14. ACTION/APPROVAL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS:

14.1 Action/Approvai Resoiution R519 Series 2023: Approving the transfer of Gaiioping Goose NO. 5
from the Town of Dolores to the Galloping Goose Historical Society. Attorney Jon Kelly introduced the
resolution. He explained some amendments and conditions of the contract.

Trustee Youngquist moved to approve resolution R519, seconded by Trustee Wheeler. Motion carried
unanimously.

14.2 Action/Approval Resolution R520 Series 2023; in support of a site evaluation for 19" Street
properties for affordable housing development. This was visited previousiy in the meeting. Attorney Kefly
clarified a few points of the resolution. Trustee Holkestad moved to approve Resolution R520 Series 2023,
seconded by Trustee Youngquist. The motion passed unanimously.

14.3 Action/Approval Ordinance 562 Series 2023, first reading; amending Title 12 of the Dolores
Municipal Code to regulate the public use of the Town’s Escarpment Properties. Attorney Kelly

3



introduced the resolution. Sheriff Nowlin previously gave his opinion opposing some of the escarpment
of the Towns property being open to the public, because of issues concerning public safety. The Sheriff
explained previously that there were several areas that were being used for drug deals, being vandalized,
and could be a safety issue for the schools and water tank. Trustee Wheeler expressed concern of hikers
walking on the cliff area and releasing rocks. Attorney Kelly stated that the area was not accessible, and it
would be part of the area the Sheriff wanted restricted. Attorney Kelly went over several sections of the
Ordinance. The final decision is to table the discussion until the Sheriff can give additional feedback.

14.4 Action/Approval Ordinance 563 Series 2023, first reading, amending Title 5 of the Dolores
Municipal Code pertaining to business licenses. Attorney Kelly introduced the ordinance. The Colorado
state legislature changed the law that businesses not physically located in the Town of Dolores may
register the business but are exempt from paying the $25.00 fee. The Town is statutory and Title 5 of the
Dolores Code needs updated. Trustee Youngquist moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 563
Series 2023, seconded by Trustee Holkestad. Motion carried unanimousiy.

15. TRUSTEES REPORTS AND ACTIONS: No reports or actions were made.
16. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS FOR: No items were provided

17. ADIQURNMENT: Mayor Reeves adjourned the meeting at :50 p.m.

Mayor Leigh Reeves Town Clerk Tammy Neely



AGENDA

TOWN OF DOLORES COLORADO
BOARD OF TRUSTEES WORKSHOP/MEETING
FEBRUARY 27™, 2023 5:30 P.M.
THE MEETING WILL BE HELD AT TOWN HALL 420 CENTRAL AVENUE.

IF YOU WISH TO ATTEND VIRTUALLY, PLEASE VISIT THE TOWN WEBSITE UNDER GOVERNMENT TOWN
BOARD MEETING FOR THE ZOOM LINK

nef/f a

WORKSHOP 5:30 Dinner will be served.

1. Region 9 Economic Development: Strategies for small towns and General Region 9 Updates.
BOARD MEETING 6:30

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL:

4. ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. IDENTIFICATION OF ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

6. CITIZENS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: This is an opportunity for Citizens to address the Board at this
time or during a Public Hearing. Each Person will have 5 minutes. The Town Board encourages public
comment by the following sources: Live at the Town Hall, virtually via ZOOM (see the Town Website for
the link), or by submitting your comments, via email, to the Town Clerk at tammy®@townofdolores.com
any time before the dated Board meeting.

7. CONSENT AGENDA:
No items on the consent agenda at this time
8. STAFF REPORTS:
8.1 Manager: Ken Charles
8.2 Attorney: Jon Kelly
8.3 Treasurer: Tricia Gibson

9. DISCUSSION/ACTION ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS:



9.1 Action/Approval Resolution R521 Series 2023: Awarding contract to SGM Inc. Planning Service as
required by the Colorado Department of Public Health & Environment {CDPHE) State Revolving Fund

(SRF) Loan Program and authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a contract for services on behalf of
the Town.

10. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS AND PRESENTATIONS:
10.1 Discussion: Update on Human Resources
10.2 Action/Discussion: OPIOID Settlement
10.3 Discussion: JRP/Bike Park
10.4 Discussion: Broadband Initiative
11. FUTURE AGENDAS:
11.1 P&Z meeting March 7th, 2023
11.2 Parks meeting March 9th, 2023.
11.3 Board meetings: March 13 & meeting/workshop 27, 2023.
12. TRUSTEES REPORTS AND ACTIONS:

13. ADJOURNMENT:



MINUTES

TOWN OF DOLORES COLORADO
BOARD OF TRUSTEES WORKSHOD/MEETING
FEBRUARY 27™, 2023 5:30 P.M.
THE MEETING WAS HELD AT TOWN HALL 420 CENTRAL AVENUE.
IF YOU WISH TO REVIEW THE RECORDING, PLEASE VISIT THE TOWN WEBSITE UNDER GOVERNMENT TOWN BOARD MEETING
ps://
WORKSHOP 5:30

REGION 9 Economic Development: Heather Otter of Region 9 Economic Development presented
strategies for economic development in small towns. She visited several points of economic
development such as:

s Broadband

e Small businesses

e Small business loans

e Relationship between Region 9 and small towns
e Economic structure for small towns

She encouraged the Board to look at the Town of Dolores’s economic needs.
BOARD MEETING 6:30
1. CALLTO ORDER: Mayor Reeves called the Board meeting to order at 6:37 p.m.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL: Board Members present: Mayor Leigh Reeves, Trustees Mark Youngquist, Chris
Holkestad, Andy Lewis, Kalin Grigg, Sheila Wheeler, and Duvall ‘Val” Truelsen.

3.1 Staff: Manager Ken Charles, Town Clerk Tammy Neely, Clerk Ann Swope, Attorney Jon Kelly, and
Treasurer Tricia Gibson.

4. ACTION/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Trustee Holkestad moved to approve the agenda, seconded by
Trustee Wheeler. Motion was approved.

5. IDENTIFICATION OF ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. No conflicts were identified.

6. CITIZENS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: This is an opportunity for Citizens to address the Board at this
time or during a Public Hearing. Each Person will have 5 minutes. The Town Board encourages public
comment by the following sources: Live at the Town Hall, virtually via ZOOM (see the Town Website for



the link), or by submitting your comments, via email, to the Town Clerk at tammy@townofdolores.com
any time before the dated Board meeting. No comments were made from the public.

7. CONSENT AGENDA:
No items on the consent agenda at this time
8. STAFF REPORTS:

8.1 Manager: Ken Charles reviewed the upcoming items on the agenda. General Updates are as
follows:

¢ The Town received one proposal for construction and installing the two early warning signs. The
proposal came from Security Siren Inc. out of Penrose Colorado. A resolution will be presented
at the March meeting to award the contract.

e Fishing is Fun Project: There are some contacts available that could be interested in completing
the project.

¢ The Towns website contractor created a Project link that provides information on projects such
as affordable housing, fishing is fun, and Phase il of the water project.

¢ The application for the GOCO grant on the JRP project was unsuccessful. A debriefing with
GOCO Staff could determine how to improve the project. The Manager and Town Attorney met
with the Bike Park committee to discuss next steps and how the Town and Committee can
coordinates efforis. Manager Charies and Jacob Cartoni had a conference with the American
Ramp Company. Recommendations for the Town moving forward with a sole source award
versus a competitive bid process as the bike group has been working with ARC. American Ramp
Company comes with a good background.

8.2 Attorney: Jon Kelly addressed some legislative items from the state.

e Gender and non-gender restroom facilities. This could possibly show up in the budget, for
renovating new restrooms in the town offices, parks, and other public facilities pertaining to the
town.

o Affordable housing tax credits.

s Distribution change of severance taxes, in home municipalities and counties.

8.3 Treasurer: Tricia Gibson presented results of the credit card and eft usage. She reported on the
Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP). It has been successful in helping low-
income residents.

9. DISCUSSION/ACTION ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS:

9.1 Action/Approval Resolution R521 Series 2023: Awarding contract to SGM Inc. Planning Service as
required by the Colorado Department of Public Health & Environment (CDPHE) State Revolving Fund
(SRF) Loan Program and authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a contract for services on behalf of
the Town. Manager Charles introduced the resolution. He focused on the project background. In 2018
SGM prepared a master plan for waterline replacement. The Town of Dolores followed SGM'’s
recommendations and is entering Phase Il of the plan. The proposed scope of work will include project

management, environmental reviews, and project needs assessment. Presented in the packet was:



o SRF Loan Program Steps
e Engineering Services Fee Estimate
e SGM’s 2023 hourly rate schedule.

Trustee Youngquist moved to approve Resolution R521 Series 2023, seconded by Trustee Holkestad.
Motion was approved unanimously.

10. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS AND PRESENTATIONS:
10.1 Discussion: Update on Human Resources. Treasurer Tricia Gibson introduced her replacement,
Heather Robertson. Manager Charles also announced that Public Works Department has hired two

replacements. Landen Meier, and Seledon DeHerrera (Sel). Attorney Kelly reminded the Board that the
Treasurer position is a statutory office and will need a resolution to appoint by the Board of Trustees.

10.2 Action/Discussion: Attorney Kelly reviewed the OPIOID settlement. In previous meeting the
Board approved the funding from the settlement be combined with other government entities to
approve a regional treatment center Southwest OPIOID District (SWORD). In the packet are releases
from that settlement. Trustee Youngquist moved to approve the five settlements, seconded by Trustee
Lewis. Motion was approved unanimously.

10.3 Discussion: JRP/Bike Park. Manager Charles and Attorney Kelly attended the Skate Park
meeting. The group will be working closely with the Parks/Playground Committee, Town Staff, and
American Ramp Company. Some of the strategies were addressed as follows:

e An MOU will be needed with the Town, Bike Park Group for paying vendors. An MOU between
ONWARD and the Town.

¢ Town will put out an RFP for vendors.

e The Bike/Skate Park will need to have an agreement with local organizations for maintaining the
dirt track and jumps.

e Grant Writing, must be clear of the mechanics so that grantors know to cut checks to the Town
of Dolores, in turn they will pay the vendors.

e A letter of support will be needed from the Town of Dolores and Parks/Playground Committee.

10.4 Discussion: Broadband Initiative, the Board briefly visited the importance of internet and having
broadband in communities.

1i. FUTURE AGENDAS:

11.1 P&Z meeting March 7th, 2023

11.2 Parks meeting March 9th, 2023.

11.3 Board meetings: March 13" & meeting/workshop 27", 2023. A workshop will not be held.
12. TRUSTEES REPORTS AND ACTIONS:

13. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Reeves adjourned the meeting at 7:45 p.m.



Mayor Leigh Reeves Town Clerk Tammy Neely



3/2/2023 11:59:47AM

TOWN OF DOLORES

Check Register
Reporting All Cash Accounts
From: 2/1/2023
To: 2/28/2023

Page 1 of 2

Number Seq Date Void Vendor Name Invoice Number Comments Amount Manual Chk
27161 02/03/2023 JON LEWIS KELLY, P.C. FEBRUARY12023 $2,962.50
27162 02/03/2023 LUCAS SANCHEZ FEBRUARY32023 2022 FALL SEMESTER INTERNSHIP $465.00
27163 02/03/2023 PADILLA LAW, P.C. 3423 $80.00
27164 02/03/2023 RURAL HOMES LLC 1 FIRST INVOICE- ATTAINABLE HOUSING $2,100.00
27165 02/03/2023 SGM 10 PHASE 2 WATER PROJECT $490.00
27166 02/03/2023 U.S. POSTAL SERVICE FEBRUARY32023 ANNUAL PO BOX RENTAL FEE $114.00
27167 02/03/2023 UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER 223010402 $3.87
27168 02/06/2023 BALLENTINE COMMUNICATIONS 31916 INCLUDES JOB RECRUITMENT $2,460.64
27169 02/06/2023 REGION 9 - EDD 1015303 2023 DUES $2,109.00
27170 02/06/2023 DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING ASSOCIATES 3978 $60.00
27171 02/06/2023 BANKCARD CENTER JANUARY252023 $2,516.77
27172 02/06/2023 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NM 0408830-4889-0 $172.00
27173 02/09/2023 AT&T MOBILITY 287297557507x01282023 $208.01
27174 02/09/2023 CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES COR 33463474 $3,669.70
271177 * 02/09/2023 FASTENAL COMPANY COBAY74014 $220.03
27178 02/09/2023 FASTTRACK COMMUNICATIONS, INC. FEBRUARY12023 $757.50
27179 02/09/2023 FRALEY PROPANE, LLC FP-180593 $926.93
27180 02/09/2023 IMAGENET CONSULTING LLC INV463579 $182.06
27181 02/09/2023 Kenneth Charles FEBRUARY 112023 JANUARY RENT 2023 $800.00
27182 02/09/2023 PARKERS WORKPLACE SOLUTIONS JANUARY312023 $364.10
27183 02/09/2023 PARTNERS IN PARTS JANUARY 312023 $92.55
27184 02/09/2023 SAN JUAN BASIN PUBLIC HEALTH DEPAR 2022-1543 $326.00
27185 02/09/2023 USA BLUEBOOK 248933 TURBIDIMETER $2,609.19
27186 02/15/2023 CEBT PAYMENTS INV 0053766 $8,328.80
27187 02/15/2023 CENTURYLINK FEBRUARY82023 $151.39
27188 02/15/2023 CIRSA 230521 CLAIM PC6018336-1 $1,000.00
27189 02/15/2023 FLYERS ENERGY, LLC CFS-3311085 SNOW-MAGEDDON 2023 $3,036.45
27190 02/15/2023 Kenneth Charles FEBRUARY 122023 ATTAINABLE HOUSING LUNCH NORWOOD $216.20
27191 02/15/2023 MONTEZUMA COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE FEBRUARY82023 $12,795.95
27192 02/23/2023 DOLORES GENERAL STORE FEBRUARY42023 $72.40

* Indicates Qut Of Sequence Check Number



3/2/2023 11:59:47AM

TOWN OF DOLORES

Check Register
Reporting All Cash Accounts
From: 2/1/2023
To: 2/28/2023

Number Seq Date Void Vendor Name Invoice Number Comments Amount Manual Chk
27193 02/23/2023 GREEN ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES GAL2303-063 $137.00
27194 02/23/2023 IMAGENET CONSULTING LLC INV473507 $77.14
27195 02/23/2023 WATER SOLUTIONS LLC DOL-02/15/23 4th Qtr 2022 $858.61
27196 02/23/2023 LEPEW PORTA JOHNS, INC 2023-01-095 $414.00
27198 * 02/23/2023 MESA SANDSTONE NOVEMBER112022 FISHING IS FUN GRANT - BOULDERS $2,000.00
27199 02/23/2023 QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC. N9809798 $249.24
27200 02/26/2023 BFW TRUCKLINE 691798, 691799, 296001, 691800 3 DAYS SNOW HAUL $3,000.00
27201 02/26/2023 CANDELARIA CONSTRUCTION 1114 3 DAYS SNOW REMOVAL $7,455.60
27202 02/26/2023 FLYERS ENERGY, LLC CFS-3326710 $1,891.88
27203 02/26/2023 MOUNTAIN J EXCAVATION 504 4 DAYS SNOW REMOVAL $3,000.00

EFT Check Count: 0  Amount: $0.00
Regular Check Count: 40  Amount: $68,374.51
40 $68,374.51

Voided Check Count: 0 Amount: $0.00

These invoices are approved for payment.

* Indicates Out Of Sequence Check Number

Signature




DR 8400 (03/10/22) Fees Due
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liquor Enforcement Division
sllhmi“'ﬂ | mal | iﬁnﬁiﬂﬂ a"mgm Renewal Fee 277.50
Storage Pemit $100X_2 __ | § [ oD ;':
Sidewalk Service Area $75.00 ' §
GST LIQUOR Additional Optional Premise Hotel & 1
$
PO BOX 937 Restaurant $100X _
Related Facility - Campus Liquor
Dolores CO 81323 Complex $160.00 per facilly $
Amount Due/Paid $
ake check payable fo: Colorado Deparment o

Revenus. The State may convert your check to a one-
time electronic banking transaction. Your bank account
may be debied as early as the same day received by the
State. If converted, your check will not be returned. If your
check is rejected due to insufficient or uncollected funds,
the Department may collect the payment amount directly
from your banking account electronically.

Retail Liquor or Fermented Malt Beverage License Renewal Application

Please verify & update ail information below Return to city or county licensing authority by due date
Licensee Name Doing Business As Name (DBA)
GST LIQUORS, INC GST LIQUOR
Liquor License # | License Type o o
03-01436 Liquor Store (city)
Sales Tax License Number [Expiration Date - [Due Date
25430180 | 0811012023 ‘ 04/26/2023
Business Address ‘ [ Phone Number 1
102 SOUTH 11TH STREET Dolores CO 81323 | 9707390632
Mailing Address A Email ) o
PO BOX 937 Dolores CO 81323 A3¥ Ngyors € Yeluw-* ™
—s — I [ ]
Operating Manager | Date of Birth | Home Address Phone Number

Ainda Tonnsen '718/63| 13935 Rl 2le  coriea (o Ri33) | T72-739-8ai5
1. Do you have legal possession of the premises at the street address above? Yes [1No
Are the premises owned or rented? i) Owned [ Rented* *If rented, expiration date oflease

2. Are you renewing a storage permit, additional optional premises, sidewalk service area, or related fadility? If yes, please see the
table in upper right hand comer and include alifees due. [¢] Yes []JNo

3a. Are you renewing a takeout and/or delivery pem?t? (Note: must hold a qualifying license type and be authorized for takeout and/or
delivery license privileges) [] Yes E No

3b. If so, which are you renewing? [_] Delivery ] Takeout [ Both Takeout and Delivery

4a. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant, including its manager, partners, officer, directors, stockholders,
members {LLC), managing members.(LL.C), or any other person with a 10% or greater financial interest in the applicant, been
found in final order of a tax agency to be delinquent in the payment of any state or local taxes, penalfies, or interest related to a
business? [] Yes []No

4b. Since the date of filing of the Iast application, has the applicant, including its manager, partners, officer, directors, stockholders,
members (LLC), managing members {LLC), or any other person with a 10% or greater financial interest in the applicant failed to
pay any fees or surcharges imposed pursuant o section44-3-503, CR.8.? []Yes []No

5. Since the date of filing of the last application, has there been any change in financial interest (new notes, loans, owners, etc.) or
organizational structure (addition or delefion of officers, directors, managing members or general partners)? If yes, explain in detail
and attach a listing of all liguor businesses in which these new lenders, owners (other than licensed financial institutions), officers,
directors, managing members, or general partners are materially interested. [] Yes E No

6. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant or any of its agents, owners, managers, partners or lenders (other
than ficensed financial institutions) been convicted of a crime? If yes, attach a detailed explanation. Yes ¥ No




DR 8400 (D3/10/22)
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liquor Enfarcement Division

7. Since the date of filing of the last application, has the applicant or any of its agents, owners, managers, partners or lenders (other
than licensed financial institufions) been denied an alcohol beverage license, had an alcohol beverage license suspended or
revoked, or had interest in any entity that had an alcohol beverage license denied, suspended or revoked? If yes, attach a detailed
explanation. []Yes [¥INo

8. Does the applicant or any of its agents, owners, managers, partners or lenders (other than licensed financial institutions) have a
direct or indirect inferest in any other Colorado liquor license, including loans to or from any licensee or interest in a loan to any
licensee? If yes, attach adetailed explanation. []Yes  [{]No

Affirmation & Consent

t declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that this application and all attachments are true, correct and complete to the
hest of my knowledge.

Type or Print Name of Applicant/Authorized Agent of Business | Title
Y Ohnasen N  Managefl
Signature |Date

M_%ﬂmm_ . - ‘ 3/ ! / 23
Report & Approval of City or County Licensing Authority

The foregoing application has been examined and the premises, business conducted and character of the applicant are satisfactory, and
we do hereby report that such license, if granted, will comply with the provisions of Title 44, Articles 4 and 3, C.R.S., and Liquor Rules.
Therefore this application is approved.

Local Licensing Authority For Date

Signature Title o [ Attest




DR 8495 (07/23/18)
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Liquor Enforcement Division
Tax Check Authorization, Waiver,
and Request to Release Information
I, l_ wnoo, S onnsen am signing this Tax Check Authorization, Waiver and Request o Release
information (hereinafter “Waiver”) onbehalf of (5S¢ A\9 upeS Enc. (the “Applicant/Licensee”)

to permit the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing authority to release information and
documentation that may otherwise be confidential, as provided below. If | am signing this Waiver for someone other than
myself, including on behalf of a business entity, | certify that I have the authority to execute this Waiver on behalf of the
Applicant/Licensee.

The Executive Director of the Colorado Department of Revenue is the State Licensing Authority, and oversees the
Colorado Liquor Enforcement Divisich as his or hér d@gents, tlerks, and employees. The infoimation and documentation
obtained pursuant to this Waiver may be used in connection with the Applicant/Licensee’s liquor license application and
ongoing licensure by the state and local licensing authorities. The Colorado Liquor Code, section 44-3-101. et seq.
(“Liquor Code™), and the Colorado Liquor Rules, 1 CCR 203-2 (“Liquor Rules”}, require compliance with certain tax
obligations, and set forth the investigative, disciplinary and licensure actions the sfate and local licensing authorities may

take for violations of the Liquor Code and Liquor Rules, including failure to meet tax reporting and paymentobligations.

The Waiver is made pursuant to section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., and any other law, regulation, resolution or ordinance
concerning the confidentiality of tax information, or any document, report or return filed in connection with state or local
taxes. This Waiver shall be valid until the expiration or revocation of a license, or until both the state and local licensing
authorities take final action to approve or deny any application(s) for the renewal of the license, whichever is later.
Applicant/Licensee agrees {o execute a new waiver for each subsequent licensing period in connection with the renewal
of any license, if requested.

By signing below, Applicant/Licensee requests that the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local
taxing authority or agency in the possession of tax documents or information, release information and documentation to
the Colorado Liquor Enforcement Division, and is duly authorized employees, to act as the Applicant’s/Licensee’s duly
authorized representative under section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., solely to allow the state and local licensing authorities, and
their duly authorized employees, to investigate compliance with the Liquor Code and Liquor Rules. Applicant/Licensee
authorizes the state and local licensing authorities, their duly authorized employees, and their legal representatives, to
use the information and documentation obtaired using this Waiver in any administrative or-judicial action regarding the
application or license.

Name (IndividualiBusiness) Social Security Number/Tax idenhfication Number
G~y lwuyees Tne. 0 Lite - 33301449
Address
___Po Box 93% e
City State | Zip
~ Do\ores <o | 81333
Home Phone Number Business/Work Phone Number
 970- 739- 3a\s | 970~ B83-3339
Printed name of person signing on behalf of the Applicant/Licensee
L\ o Ko asen
 Applicant/Licensee’s Signature (Slg'nat_ure&éu_ﬁ?iz%é %é%s&osurﬁf confidential tax information) Date signed
\JJ-'“‘& \f‘\ r}sﬁf(m;i’zv"\ 3’]-:}3
Privacy Act Statement

Providing your Social Security Number is voluntary and no right, benefit or privilege provided by law will be denied as a
result of refusal to disclose it. § 7 of Privacy Act, 5 USCS § 552a (note).

4



ue, Dolores, CO 81323
Phone: (970) 882-7720 Fax: (970) 882-7466

Fee: $50 Date: 4. |-20 3
TOWN OF DOLORES TASTING PERMIT APPLICATION
Licensee Name:  (=<."% L\\ci} wnesS Tnc.
dba:
Licensed Premises Address: O o i rN sseeed Danesce RiBA3

(Tastings shall be conducted only on a licensee’s ticensad premise)

Phone Number: F70- BLa-33a9 o

State Liquor License Number: OA-OVH 3o

Expiration Date of Retail Liquor Store or Drug Store License: (- 10 -3
(The Tasting Permit will be valid for the period of the existing liquor license)

Original Application: Renewal Application: <

Attach Certificate of Training for each individual conducting Tastings.

l/ Attach a written Control Plan to establish how the Licensee will conduct Tastings.

¢/ Tastings Schedule completed on reverse side. 3-es A \Aoc hed

| hereby ceriify that the informatian in this application and all attachments is true, correct, and complete to the best of my knowledge.
| understand and agree that it is my responsihility to ensure that all currant and future emnlovaas complata the Sallar-Sarver training
as required by the State of Colorado, Department of Revenue, Liquor Enforcement Division Standards. | understand and agree that
it is my rasponsibility and the responsibility of all of my agenis and employees to comply with all applicable law, including alt
applicable provisions of the City of Cortez Municipal Code and the Colorado Liquor or Beer Code which affect my license andfor the
activities conducted under that license.

Signature of Licensee: (j)wh AT Date: 3—/-.17%

-}

dok ok gk kR kh ok drok ok okh ok okok Rk ok kW R d AR RN kKRR AT AR R AL

APPROVAL OF LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY

Approved: , Denied:

Local Licensing Authority Signature Date
If denied, applicant informed of decision to deny (Decision shall be made in writing within § days)

Date of Notification

Datesof Tastings |  Time of Tastings [ Describo Where | Sourcs of Alcohol




11

12

| more than 4 days in one 11:00 am and 7:00 pm

Seq osvorched

| not to exceed 104 days per | not to exceed 5 hours in one within the license premises, |

license year nor occur on day; hours must occur between  the event will be conducted

week

“alcohol used in tastings shall be
purchased through a licensed

wholesaler, licensed brewpub, or

Heensed winery

13

14

ANY DEVIATION FROM THIS'S_CHéDULE MUST BE REPORTED
TO THE LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY IN WRITING

AT LEAST ONE WEEK IN ADVANCE.

The size of an individual alcohol sample shall not exceed one ounce of malt
or vinous liguor or one-half of one cunce of spiritucus liquor

Any violations of the Town of Dolores or State Liquor Code may result in
revocation, suspension, and/or enforcements may be imposed by the

Dolores Board of Trustees



GST LIQUORS WINE, BEER AND LIQUOR TASTING CONTROL PLAN
1. WINE TASTING

It is our intent to create a classy but comfortable WINE tasting event at our liquor store. This will
consist of our new and established customers having the opportunity to sample small amounts of
WINE, in order to determine if they like the type and brand being featured. The samples that will be
offered will only be offered to persons 21 years of age or older. The size of the individual sample will
not exceed {1} ONE ounce of WINE per varietal. {not to exceed 4 varietals) A discounted price on
WINE which is showcased during tasting will be offered.

2. BEER TASTING

It is our intent to create a classy but comfortable BEER tasting event at our liquor store. This will
consist of our new and established customers having the opportunity to sample small amounts of
BEER, in order to determine if they like the type and brand being featured. The samples that will be
offered will only be offered to persons 21 years of age or older. The size of the individual sample will
not exceed (1) ONE ounce of BEER per varietal. (not to exceed 4 varietals) A discounted price on the
BEER which is showcased during tasting will be offered.

3. LIQUOR (SPIRIT) TASTING

It is our intent to create a classy but comfortable LIQUOR/SPIRIT tasting event at our liquor store.
This will consist of our new and established customers having the opportunity to sample small
amounts of LIQUOR/SPIRIT, in order to determine if they like the type and brand being featured. The
samples that will be offered will only be offered to persons 21 years of age or older. The size of the
individual sample will not exceed (1/2) ONE HALF ounce of LIQUOR/SPIRIT per varietal {not to
exceed 4 varietals). A discounted price on LIQUOR/SPIRT which is showcased during tasting will be
offerad.

All in store tasting will be represented by a Licensed Wholesaler, Licensed Winery, or Brewpub.
Samples will be poured by a TIPS Trained professional at GST Liquors. Wine and or Cheese may be offered
during the duration of each tasting.

Tasting will be conducted in the center of our store next to the featured section.

Our upcoming tastings will serve to add a boost to our business success along with a boost to the
Dolores Community.



GST Liquors Tasting Schedule for 2023

FRIDAY MARCH 31 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY APRIL 28 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY MAY 12 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY MAY 26 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY JUNE 16 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY JUNE 30 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY JULY 14 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY JULY 28 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY AUGUST 25 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY SEPTEMBER 29 4:00PM-6:00PN
FRIDAY OCTOBER 27 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY NOVEMBER 10 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY NOVEMBER 24 4:00PM-6:00PM
FRIDAY DECEMBER 8  4:00PM-6:00PM

FRIDAY DECEMBER 22  4:00PM-6:00PM



on ProcedureS

....—1q

« al.t......_. :
t_tli!ii’




2/24/2023 6:26:39PM TOWN OF DOLORES Page 67 of 68
Billing Period Report
For 1 2/1/2023 - 2/28/2023
Include Write Off Accounts: True

Account Lacation Transaction Type Amount* Transaction Date EID Last Reading  New Reading Usage
Active Hold Hold End

Billing Period Totals

Balance Forward 31,412.67 570
Payments & Credits
LTF-ABDJUSTMENT -6.20 1
Payment Cash -1,364.74 19
Payment Check -31,989.80 396
Payment Credit Card -1,861.05 19
Payment Credit Card-NO SWIPE -200.10 1
Payment E-Check -808.92 7
SEWER ADJUSTMENT -90.69 2
WATER ADJUSTMENT -64.18 1
Payments & Credits -36,475.68 446
SEWER
SEWER 18,460.55 488
SEWER 18,460.55 488
WATER
WATER 20,775.36 556
WATER 20,775.36 556
Ending Balance $34,172.90 2,060

Rate Code Totals

Rate Code Amount Usage Count
SEWER
CS1 COMM IN TOWN $2,293.54 218,600 61
S01 RESIDENT IN TOWN $11,932.80 865,700 330
S02 RESIDENT OUT OF TOWN $739.31 40,900 13
S03 RESIDENT IN TOWN 1K $289.28 24,000 8
S1K COMMSEWER1KMETER $2,055.16 544,000 30
S90 SENIOR LI DISCOUNT $1,150.46 110,100 46
WATER
C05 COMM.TAP IN TOWN $66.68 0 2
Cw1 COMM IN TOWN $2,337.22 173,600 63
CW3 CM1K IN TOWN $1,165.50 154,000 25
MF1 100 GAL MULT! FAMILY INTOWN $693.80 73,000 20
MF2 1K MULTI FAMILY INTOWN $1,927.74 402,000 11
MF3 1K OUT OF TOWN MULTI FAMILY $168.69 23,000 2
MF4 100 GAL MULT! FAMILY OUT OF TOV $468.50 17,000 10
R01 RESIDENT IN TOWN $10,743.44 828,400 316
R02 RES. TOWN TAP $266.72 0 8
R03 RESIDENT OUT TOWN $1,644.25 93,900 35
RK1 RESIDENT 1K METER $133.36 14,000 4
TW1 TOWN WATER $0.00 18,000 11
TW2 TOWN WATER 1 K $0.00 2,000 2
W90 SENIOR L! DISCOUNT $1,159.46 111,100 46
WD WATER DOCK 1K $0.00 184,000 1

Usage Totals



2/24/2023 6:26:39PM TOWN OF DOLORES Page 68 of 68

Billing Period Report
For 1 2/1/2023 - 2/28/2023
Include Write Off Accounts: True

Account Location Transaction Type Amount* Transaction Date EID Last Reading  New Reading Usage
Active Hold Hold End

SEWER

3,000

Commercial 716,300

MultiFamily 0

Other 1,000

PublicGovt 1,000

Residential 1,072,000

1,793,300
WATER

3,000

Commercial 738,300

MultiFamily 1,000

Other 1,000

PublicGovt 205,000

Residential 1,145,700

2,084,000

Total Usage 3,887,300

Negative Usage

No customers were billed for negative usage in this period.

Other Receipts

Description Amount
BUILDING PERMIT $65.00
BUSINESS LICENSE $250.00
CHARTER FRANCHISE $1,513.24
COMNET FRANCHISE $754.26
COURT FINES $100.00
DEVELOPMENT FEE $100.00
DOG LICENSE $180.00
EMPIRE FRANCHISE $4,603.56
LIQUOR LICENSE $1,525.00
MISC-STREETS $102.43
PROP TAX-OWNERSHIP $936.88
PROPERTY TAX $3,008.65
R&B TAX $393.61
WATER DOCK $1,071.50
$14,604.13

Payment Type Amount
Cash $-1,166.50
Check $-13,437.63
o $-14,604.13

* Indicates non-finalized charge



MAINTENANCE DAILY REPORT FEBRUARY 2023

1 Plants. Pulled the weekly chlorine samples. Finished the turbidity report. Hauled snow.
2 Plants. Hauled snow. Marked a utility locate for 213 S 8%

3 Plants. Pushed snow berms on streets that are plowed to the side.

4-5  Plants. Randy got called out for a possible leak at 706 Hillside. Randy and RJ opened
storm drains on N 7% and N 8 streets.

6 Plants. Finished the DMR for the sewer treatment plant. Finished the annual biosolids
report to CDPHE. Pushed and widened streets that are plowed to the side.

7 Plants. Pulled the monthly wastewater plant samples, chlorine samples and bacti samples
to take to the labs in Durango. Hauled snow form Hillside. Set u the Turbidity meter at
the water plant.

8 Plants. Hauled snow and lubed the loader.

9 Plants. Pushed more snow berms to widen the travel lanes.

10 Plants. Hauled snow. Moved snow piles at the post office entrance.

11-12 Plants. RJ

13 Plants. Hauled snow. Attended the monthly Board Meeting.

14 Plants. Serviced the loader.

15 Plants. Plowed snow and cleaned the walking trails.

16 Plants. Sanded streets. Cleaned the walking trail to the post office. Picked up trash.
Pushed snow on S 7. Repaired a hydraulic hose on the tractor. Took the weekly
chlorine samples.

17 Plants. Pushed snow on S 8% street. Hauled snow and completed the annual inventory.

18-20 Plants. Randy.

21 Plants. Checked the water meter for 202 s 7. Turned water meter off at 101 N 7.
Hauled snow. Training Sel on the Backhoe.

22 Plants. Plowed snow. Repaired motor grader tire.

23 Plants. Pulled the weekly chlorine samples. Widen streets. Clean the walking trail.



24

25-26

27

28

Plants. Clean alleys. Worked on the backhoe. Hauled snow.
Plants. RJ got called out to move snow for emergency sign.

Plants. Worked on the backhoe. Hauled snow. Work on the frozen water line at 200 S
6" street. Attended the Board meeting.

Plants. Hauled snow. Replaced the CV axel in the Dodge pickup. Serviced the meters at
the water tank. Replaced the throttle position sensor in the backhoe.



To:
From:
Dt:
RE:

Dolores, Colorado
Est. 1900

Manager’s Update

Dolores Colorado

MAYOR AND TRUSTEES

Ken Charles, Dolores Town Manager
March 13, 2023

Meeting Information Update

Monday/s Town Board Meeting

On the agenda for our regular meeting Monday March 13, 2023:

1.

2.

3.

There will be a public hearing followed by discussion/action on the second reading of
Ordinance 563 amending Title 5 of the Dolores Municipal Code pertaining to business licenses.
The trustees will consider the Resolution to approve the grant agreement with CDOT for the
Flanders Park Restroom

The trustees will review the draft Memorandum of Agreement with the Lost Canyon Bike Park
organization. Lost Canyon is nearing their fund raising goal of $30,000 to begin the design
phase with the American Ramp Company.

General Updates

1.

bl

Overtime hours for the snow events in January, February and the fist week of March is 150.5
hours. Wear and tear on the equipment began to show as the three of four snow removal
equipment required repairs. Fortunately, public works crew members are skilled mechanics, and
all repairs were performed in house.

Staff and the Parks committee had their debriefing call with GOCO staff regarding the grant
application. This will be discussed later in the agenda.

Also later in the agenda will be a discussion on the town’s nest steps in economic development.
Eric Simmons of the Dolores FPD and I met with Sentry Siren Inc to discuss their proposal to
the RFP for installing two new early warning sirens. We hope to bring you an agreement at the
March 27 meeting.

The Dolores FPD is planning to replace or improve one of the buildings that house the fire
equipment. This project will trigger LUC requirements and the FPD will want to seek variances
from these code requirements. Staff is recommending that the FPD bundle the variances with the
land donation and subsequent subdivision process.

Update on the Community Center. The Center board informed me that they have a line on a new
insurance carrier and are pursuing obtaining the insurance. Jon drafted a lease agreement, but we
will keep that if needed for the future. My sense is that eventually the Center board members
will want to get serious about transferring ownership to the town. Research is warranted about
what that would mean for the town.

I want to keep the board informed about the Fishing is Fun project. I have contacted the Army
Corp regarding the 404 permitting process, but at this point I have not received guidance. I

420 Central Ave. P O Box 630 Dolores. CO, 81323
Ph. 970-882-7720 fax. 970-882-7466
https:// townofdolores.colorado.gov



Dolores, Colorado
Ear 1900

have been in contact with two sub-contractors that AquaHab typically works with, and they are
interested in this project. They have considerable experience in this type of river work. We may
need to hire a third subcontractor to help with the 404-permit process. There are funds in the
budget for this work. If it will be enough remains to be seen. At this point there are loose ends.
We will need to develop a better map with more precise locations of where the work will occur
and determine if we will need agreements with the landowners on the south side of the river.

. A joint planning commission and housing task force meeting was held on March 7 to discuss the
recommendations by the town’s land use consultant, Community Recode, for additional Land
Use Code revisions to encourage affordable housing.

Also, Rural Homes is beginning to perform work on the 19™ street properties. The first sub-
consultant will be Trautner Geotech who will be performing the soils analysis. They will likely
be on site the week of March 6. Additionally, the task force will hold a meeting with an
informational meeting with property owners near the 19 street sites. We are planning for the
week of March 27.

The meeting’s purpose is to discuss the workforce housing crisis and goals for the project.
e Present the model that uses donated land. This will be a home ownership project and will
income qualifications, deed restricted, Fading West buildings.
e Explored options on three town owned parcels- the infill project is the most feasible
based on access, utilities, and costs to develop.
Discuss the unit design-these will be attractive homes.
e We are at the early stage where we are looking at soils, drainage, engineering to see if
the project is feasible. At this point we do not know if this is a feasible project.
e Present the positive impacts
1. Home ownership for the Dolores workforce
2. New families living in Dolores
3. Full time employees-new neighbors.

Upcoming Events

1. March 16-joint meeting at the Ute Mountain Ute casino. I will need a final head count. This
is the second meeting between the three municipalities, county government and the tribe.
The purpose of these meetings is first networking and second to catch up on what each entity
is working on.

2. March 27% town board meeting. We do not plan to hold a workshop.

420 Central Ave. P O Box 630 Dolores, CO. 81323
Ph. 970-882-7720 fax. 970-882-7466
https:// townofdolores.colorado.gov



3/6/23, 2:48 PM Colorado Parks & Wildlife - Regional Partnerships Initiative

COLORADO PARKS & WILDLIFE

Regional Partnerships Initiative

Colorado Outdoor Regional Partnership Funding Program

Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) and Great Outdoors Colorado (GOCO) are collaborating to fund new
and existing coalitions to join a statewide initiative working to ensure that Colorado’s land, water, and
wildlife thrive while also providing for equitable and quality outdoor recreation experiences.

Spring 2023 Grant Cycle Open

Interested applicants are encouraged to review grant guidelines and then contact Jody Kennedy,
Regional Partnership Program Manager, to discuss details.

Letters of Interest are due to Jody.kennedy@state.co.us by Friday, April 7th, 2023, or sooner. Applicants
who meet the grant requirements will receive a link for an online application. Applications are due April

28th, 2023.

Key Dates:

« February 28, 2023: Application Period Opens

« March 13, 12-1 PM: Informational Webinar Q & A Session. Registration (required)_link
o April 7, 2023: Letter of Interest Deadline

« April 28 at 5:00 PM: Application Deadline

« May 1 - May 31, 2023: Review by CPW Staff and CO-OP Scoring Committee

+ May or early June, 2023: Applicant presentations to the CO-OP Scoring Committee

« June, 2023: Awards & Partnerships Announced

Recent Funding Awards

Eagle County Community Wildlife Roundtable

The Roundtable was formed in 2020 by community members and organizations with the purpose of
understanding and addressing issues facing wildlife populations, and the goal of leveraging diverse
values, creativity, and resources to move toward positive action and enduring solutions to the complex
wildlife issues in Eagle County. Awarded funding will support coalition development including goals,
criteria, and priorities based on existing community engagement and land manager master plans.

Grand PLACES 2050

(People, Land, Access, Conservation, Ecosystems, and Sustainability)

Grand PLACES 2050 strives to become a model coalition that sustainably manages Grand County’s natural
and cultural resources in balance with quality outdoor recreation experiences. Funding for Grand PLACES

hitps://cpw.state.co.us/aboutus/Pages/Regional-Partnerships-Initiative.aspx 113



3/6/23, 2:48 PM Colorado Parks & Wildlife - Regional Partnerships Initiative

2050 will support conservation and recreation planning at the landscape scale by focusing on both short-
term responsive planning and long-term prioritization.

Roaring Fork Outdoor Coalition

The Roaring Fork Coalition convenes land managers and decision-makers to look at regional recreation
challenges holistically to proactively move toward coordinated management and solutions. Awarded
funding will help formalize the coalition, create a framework for collaboration, and establish a vision and
goals for conservation and recreation in the region.

Summit County Outdoor Coalition

This new coalition will seek to understand and address issues facing wildlife populations, recreation, and
landscape-scale ecosystems across Summit County. The goal of the coalition is to best manage the
impacts of growth in outdoor recreation and support ecosystem health in the face of climate change. This
new coalition will utilize roundtable formats and a science-based mapping tool to promote planning
needs and projects for their community.

Spring 2023 Grant Cycle

Funding will continue to be available to support new and existing coalitions that meet criteria under

a State-level vision and advance the development of local and regional planning elements to inform a
statewide conservation and recreation plan. The next grant period will take place between Feb 28 and
April 28, 2023, with letters of interest due in early April. Look for details on this webpage.

For questions and more information:

» Contact CPW Regional Partnership Program Manager Jody Kennedy at jody.kennedy@state.co.us.

« Sign-up for the Colorado Outdoor Partnership email list to receive information.

July 2022 - First & Second Round of Regional Partnerships

+ Central Colorado Recreation Partnership
o Envision Recreation in Balance Partnership
o Gunnison Sustainable Tourism Outdoor Recreation (STOR) Committee
« Metro Denver Nature Alliance
« NoCo PLACES 2050
» Northwest Colorado Qutdoor Coalition
« Quray Recreation and Conservation Alliance
¢ OQutside 285
« Pikes Peak Qutdoor Recreation Alliance
« Routt Recreation Roundtable
« San Luis Valley Great Qutdoors
« Two Rivers Conservation and Recreation Roundtable

Map of Colorado Outdoor Regional Partnership funding recipients

Questions on the Regional Partnerships Initiative:

https://cpw.state.co.us/aboutus/Pages/Regional-Partnerships-Initiative.aspx 2/3



3/6/23, 2:48 PM Colorado Parks & Wildlife - Regional Partnerships Initiative

Jody Kennedy
Regional Partnership Program Manager
jody.kennedy@state.co.us

Governor Jared Polis signs Executive Order creating the
Colorado Outdoor Regional Partnerships Initiative.

The executive order tasks the Colorado Department
of Natural Resources (DNR) and Colorado Parks and
Wildlife (CPW) to work with the Colorado Outdoor
Partnership (CO-OP) to identify, create and formalize
local and regional collaboratives, as Colorado
Outdoor Regional Partnerships. Together DNR, CPW
and the CO-OP will develop a state-level vision for
the sustainable management of Colorado’s lands,
waters, wildlife and outdoor recreation. The Regional
Partnerships will identify projects and create local and regional priorities for
balancing recreation and conservation to inform a Statewide Conservation and
Recreation Plan.

Visit the Colorado Outdoor Partnership to learn more about this initiative.

https://cpw.state.co.us/aboutus/Pages/Regional-Partnerships-Initiative.aspx 3/3



TOWN OF DOLORES
FEBRUARY
2023




Detective Division

Dolores Monthly
February 2023

MONTHLY YEAR TO DATE
NEW CASES ASSIGNED 0 0
CASES CLEARED / INACTIVE / CLOSED 0 0
CASES PENDING 0 0
VALUE OF STOLEN / DAMAGED PROPERTY $0.00 $0.00
VALUE OF RECOVERED PROPERTY $0.00 $0.00
HOURS WORKED 0 0

OTHER - HOURS WORKED 0

MONTEZUMA COUNTY DETECTIVE DIVISION HAD THE FOLLOWING:

CASE # OFFENSE-VIOLATION STATUS



Summons Written For the

Town of Dolores

February

2023



Dolores Summons

Total Records: 34

MONTEZUMA COUNTY SHERIFF'S
OFFICE

730 EAST DRISCOLL STREET g 7
CORTEZ, CO 81321
STEVE NOWLIN - SHERIFF

970-565-8452
970-564-3731
| CITATION | CHARGES . o Count !
| NUMBER | f
C29369 | CRIMINAL VIOL - ASSAULT IN THE SECOND DEGREE, CRIMINAL VIOL - AHEMPTTO 11
| ESCAPE B ’
Date Reported | Issuing Officer i
12/1/2023  PHELPS, ALLEN ) — ]
CITATION CHARGES S ' Count
NUMBER |
(C32532 _ CRIMINAL VIOL - ASSAULT IN THE THIRD DEGREE ' [F
" Date Reported T_I;suing Officer T
12/2/2023 ) AYBAR, HAKAN - |
| CITATION | CHARGES N [ Count:
| NUMBER |
I€31911 [ CRIMINAL VIOL - ASSAULT IN THE THIRD DEGREE 7
l Date Reported Issuing Officer i
"2/10/2023 " GUTTRIDGE, DAYLAN ) i
' CITATION CHARGES Count]
- NUMBER ‘ i
[C29368 | CRIMINAL VIOL - ATTEMPT TO ESCAPE , CRIMINAL VIOL - ASSAULT IN THE SECOND 1
_ DEGREE ‘
Date Reported Issuing Officer !
‘2/1/2023 | PHELPS, ALLEN
| CITATION | CHARGES Count|
NUMBER i
C33000  CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A PROTECTION ORDER (M1) B IE
| Date Reported ] Issuing Officer
12/21/2023 | SUMMERS, ZACHARY B )
Fﬁnﬂou CHARGES | count |
NUMBER |
'C32412 | CRIMINAL VIOL - DOG NOT UNDER CONTROL - 1
| Date Reparted | Issuing Officer
£2/18/2023 KENNEDY, ALEXANDER T N
CITATION | CHARGES h - " Count
‘ NUMBER . |
i €30436 | CRIMINAL VIOL - DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A~ 1 |
! | PROTECTION ORDER (M1) | i ‘
' Drate Reported ; Issuing Officer
(2/7/2023 B T MANN, HEATHER
' CITATION CHARGES T T Count |

NUMBER

03/03/2023 11:36




€30473 CRIMINAL VIOL - DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A 1
PROTECTION ORDER (M2}, CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A PROTECTION
’ { ORDER (M2), CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A PROTECTION ORDER (M2),
! CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A PROTECTION ORDER (M2), CRIMINAL VIOL -
1 I CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A PROTECTION ORDER {M2), CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF ]
f , VIOLATION OF A PROTECTION ORDER (M2), CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIME OF VIOLATION OF A I
l

| PROTECTION ORDER (M2) i

l
| |

Issuing Officer
" FROST, THOMAS

‘Date Reported

{2/10/2023
| CITATION ' CHARGES Count
|NUMBER |
,C31579  CRIMINAL VIOL - DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, CRIMINAL VIOL - HARASSMENT - STRIKE, SHOVE, 1
! ' KICK (M1) 1
j Date Reported . Issuing Officer ‘
'2/22/2023 _WEST, MARC - ) ]
| CITATION CHARGES Count
NUMBER
| C31578 [ CRIMINAL VIOL - DROVE VEHICLE DUI - ALCEHOL/DRU_GS,LO RBOTH , CRIMINAL VIOL - | 1 ‘
: DROVE VEHICLE W/BLOOD ALCOHOL CONTENT 0.08 PER SE, TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - i
. CARELESS DRIVING, CRIMINAL VIOL - ILLEGAL POSSESSION OR CONSUMPTION OF ETHYL
' ALCOHOL BY AN UNDERAGE PERSON
, Date Reported Issuing Officer
{2/92023  WEST,MARC ) l
| CITATION | CHARGES Count |
[NUMBER | ) b
C32411  CRIMINAL VIOL - HARASSMENT - INSULT, TAUNT, CHALLENGE 1
; Date Reported | Issuing Officer |
12/5/2023 B - " KENNEDY, ALEXANDER ]
| CITATION ' CHARGES o N "~ Count
| NUMBER |
(C32777 __ NON-CRIM ORDINANCE VIOL - DOGS RUNNING AT LARGE PROHIBITED i1
| Date Reported Issuing Officer !
1 2/11/2023 _ — GILBERTO, JACOB )
| CITATION . CHARGES ! Count |
NUMBER ‘
‘_c?_]s_n_ | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - CARELESS DRIVING 1 j
! Date Reported Issuing Officer T
|2/3/2023 _ WEST, MARC B
| CITATION | cHARGES i Count |
| NUMBER |
LC31966 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - CARELESS DRIVING T
|DateReported Issuing Officer
12/24/2023 - NOWLIN, STEVE
| CITATION CHARGES Count |
| NUMBER |
[C32849 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING- I F
: Date Reported ! Issuing Officer
12/2/2023 B  GILBERTO, JACOB |

03/03/2023 11:36



| CITATION CHARGES
NUMBER

C32338 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING-

' Date Reported I Issuing Officer
sl L
2/4/2023 LANYON, JACOB

CITATION ' CHARGES
NUMBER

€32775 %TRAFFIC_VIO_L-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING-

Date Reported ! 1ssuing Officer

12/5/2023 ' | | GILBERTO, JACOB

| CITATION ‘ CHARGES
'NUMBER |

1 C32773 ' TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE-:SPEEDING-

.: Date Reported Issuing Officer

'2/10/2023 ' GILBERTQ, JACOB

 CITATION CHARGES
| NUMBER |

C32774 TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING-

I Date Reported - Issuing Officer

12/11/2023 ' ' | GILBERTO, JACOB

| cxTaTION | CHARGES

NUMBER
C32339 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING-
I Date Reported | Issuing Officer

[ s

12/14/2023 LANYON, JACOB

CITATION | CHARGES
NUMBER |
C32778  TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING-

Date Reported , Issuing Officer

'2/16/2023 __TeiserTo, 1acos

| CITATION | CHARGES
NUMBER

€32779 ' TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING-
1 Date Reported » Issuing Officer
12/25/2023 | GILBERTO, JACOB

| CITATION | CHARGES
| NUMBER |
C32915 TTRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE -~ SPEEDING-

B e S ———

| Date Reported ' Issuing Officer

2/27/2023

 GUTTRIDGE, DAYLAN

CITATION t CHARGES
NUMBER |

2
0]

'C32912 ! TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDI

' Date Reported ! Issuing Officer

'2/8/2023 _ | SUMMERS, ZACHARY

{ CITATION | CHARGES
i NUMBER

03/03/2023 11:36



'€32913 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING LIMITS 1

| Date Reported Issuing Officer !
2/21/2023 | GUTTRIDGE, DAYLAN
| CITATION CHARGES ‘ | Count
| NUMBER . b
(€32914 __ TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING LIMITS F
| Date Reported Issuing Officer ]
(2/212023 ) - GUTTRIDGE, DAYLAN 1
. CITATION | CHARGES ) Count.
| NUMBER
1€32916 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING LIMITS o e .
' Date Reported Issuing Officer ;
12/28/2023 _SMTH, STEVEN T ]
CITATION | CHARGES Count
NUMBER |
1C32917 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING LIMITS T
'Date Reported Issuing Officer ’
_2/28/2023 SMITH, STEVEN
[CITATION CHARGES : ' count |
NUMBER l
C31580 | TRAFFIC VIOL-ORDINANCE - SPEEDING LIMITS _ _ T
Date Reported . Issuing Officer I
$2/28/2023 | WEST, MARC |
CITATION CHARGES ! Count |
 NUMBER | _ L - g ! ‘
'C32340 | TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - BACKED VEHICLE IN PARKING AREA WHEN NOT [1
SAFE/INTERFEREDW/T |
Date Reported Issuing Officer
12/22/2023 ' ' LANYON, JACOB. o
CITATION | CHARGES s T Count !
NUMBER ~
/C30474  TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - DROVE (MOTOR/OFF-HIGHWAY) VEHICLE WHEN LICENSE i1
| |DENIED, TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - SPEEDNG > 25-39 MPH OVER PRIMA FACIE LIMIT I
! Date Reported ' Issuing Officer |
(2/12/2023 - FROST, THOMAS o ]
| CITATION ' CHARGES Count |
}_N}_'_"BER ) N I N a1
{C30475 | TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - DROVE (MOTOR/OFF-HIGHW AY)VEHICLE WHEN LICENSED Ti ‘
B | SUSPENDED, CRIMINAL VIOL - CRIMINAL IMPERSONATION e .
'Date Reported " Issuing Officer
.2/15/2023 _ L | FROST, THOMAS 7
' CITATION | CHARGES Count |
NUMBER !

D e S a—

C32911  TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - SPEEDING > 5-0 MPH OVER PRIMA FACIE LIMIT . TRAFFIC VIOL- 1
| STATUTE - OWNER OPERATED/ALLOWED TO BE OPERATED/AN UNINSURED MV ON PUB, |
| _ TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - DISPLAYED EXPIRED NUMBER PLATES i

i
;
!
1
o

03/03/2023 11:36



_Date Reported _ Issuing Officer
12/7/2023 ' SUMMERS, ZACHARY

CITATION # CHARGES
NUMBER |

C30471  TRAFFIC VIOL-STATUTE - SPEEDING 20-24 MPH > POSTED LIMIT IN
| CONSTRUCTION/SCHOOL ZON

i Date Reported | Issuing Officer
.2/7/2023 B FROST, THOMAS

03/03/2023 11:36



Town of Dolores
February 2023

Municipal Code/Traffic Citations and
Reports Written

Detective Hours: 0

Patrol Hours: 0



0
(4189
8004
S6'C
£c
A4
0
e
£6'1
L'ty
FA N4 4
8¢'6
EL'9E
Lroc
1’8t
<00
89'8Y
86'8T
Loy
{T0
LL9E
6’1
SLLST
0
wey
€011
€g'e
89°8VT
9'st
£9'ES
ST0
A Y
0
A

awij jeyol  awil Say

0
o't
70'SE
8yl
£T
60'7
0
we
€6'T
Ly
YL 0T
69y
€L9t
A 414
[4%:13
100
89'8Y
9T'e
414
200
LL9E
S6'1T
SLLST
(4]
(48 4
JAN
61
89'8YT
t9'st
€9'eS
800
91’0
0
€0°9S

[= 2= B« R o R -}

S00

S6C
3URJS uQ awng Ay

OO0 OO0

60T

o o

E9

LA
Lt
ST'0

[4:%3

[= 2> I = I I = B I - i = R}
m
-

T O
n
o~

1378
[A
0

0

0
200

|9Aei} Ay  asuodsay Say  yojedsiq Bay

700

870
500
8¥0

£T0
68°6
100
[T
200
8T°4€

S0°0
ITe
S00

€L0
[44Y
€TPST
S0°0
80°¢C
600
00
L0°0
0
LUAY
0

0

0
S00

0

1
v0'sE
[A
S¢T
A 4
0

4
€6'T
£LE
580
89t
849
€L'T
SLt
100
¥'e
900
£2°0
00
LT
ES'T
[4°33
Sta
£€9°CC
800
881
LET
81
191
800
910
0
L9°5¢

O W = N o NS e e T NN e

™ = = M
v

un
O

v e N e e N

[4

WIT180Ud D4Vl
IN3AID0V Did4vdl
SIVIYHL

F1DIHIA SNOIMSNS
3QISLNO NOLLYSILSIANI AOINS
d3uid SLOHS

T13L O1 H4VS

INYVIV TVLLNICISIY
SSADOIY

IOVINVA ALYIdOdd
T1vD INOHd
INIV1dWOD ONIMYVd
ISIHOLOW INAYIA0
123rans IViN3IN
TYININY LSOT1

AINO NOILVINHO4NI
anvyd

1004

dNMOTIOL

1041vd Yiix3
FONTI0IA J11SINQQA
39UV 1V SNINNNY 504
F3HHOSHAI TYNIWID
1OVINOD TWNSNISNOD
AGANVLS HAD

AI3IHD SS3ANISNE

INYUVTV SSINISNA
Advioynd

ALINDI431Q ONIHLYIYY
NI Mv3ud

YIHLO H3AY3S O IdWILLY
TIAID 3AY3S OL LdiN3LLY
AONIDY Y3HLIO LSISSV

TVININY 3AISSIYOOV
SIUSAT JoquinN adAj jjed



[4:1 €207 9494-3D1AYIS HO4 STIVD TVIOL

SE'6Cl L8'ST I9°€T SE'L 15°0 Sy ]

ADFHDI UVITIM
80°99 L1°e T 0 960 670 ot

dOLS DIHdvYL



ILITT0IAY
NOSNHOM
NOSNHOM
VZOGNINL
VZOON3IWL
VZOGNINL
VZOONINL
1109088
yvI11oar
dvrioar
JLIHMS
110908S
dvnoar
NOLONIaNTV
NOL1ONIaNTY
NOLONIaMV
NOLONIaNTVY
NOLONIaN1V
NOLONIaN1v
NOLONIaN1Vv
NOLONIaGn1v
NOLONIaNTV
VZOONIWL
yviioar
yvrioar
NOQN3IdA
VZOONINL
ILLF10IAY
VZOUNINL
NOLONIaNTY
NOLONIaNIY
NoLONIgNTVY
110904S
iaxyel jie)

0D ‘s34010d
02 ‘S3H010a
0D ‘S3H010a
02 ‘S3W0104a
02 ‘s34010a
03 ‘s340100a
00 ‘s3¥0104a
QD ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘sTHO104a
02 ‘s3y010a
02 ‘S3H010a
02 ‘s3H0104a
0D ‘SIHOT0a
02 ‘s340100
02 ‘s3¥0100
00 ‘s3¥010a
0D ‘s3Ho10a
02 'sIHOT0a
02 'S3HOT0a
02 ‘S34070a
02 ‘s3¥010d
02 ‘s34010a
02 ‘s340100
02 'S34010a
02 's3Ho10a
02 ‘s3010a
02 ‘S34010a
0D ‘S3H010a
02 ‘S3¥010a
€D ‘s3¥o10a
€D 'S3”0T04q
00 ‘s34010a
00 ‘S3”0104a

a1e1s ‘A

AV QVOYTIVY T0S
1S HI9S00Z

AV IVHINID TOET
JAV TVHINID TOET
1SHI9 N 00T

JAV H1S S 002

JAV QvOH1ivY 009T

IS HI6T N OOT
AV IVHINID TOET
AV QYOYTIVY 00rT
ISHI9S 10T

JAV TVHINID TOET
1S HITT S 007

JAV QvOuvY T0S
1S Q¥E S 00¢

AV QYOYTivY 00t
JAV AQVOUNVY T2
AV AVONTIVY 004
JAY AVOUUVY TrE
AV QvoHIIvy 10S
AV IVHINID ¥6
AV GVOHIIvY 00
SPT AMH 86€8T
IAV IVHINID 02t
AV IVHINID TT0T
AV TVHLNID 0T
IS HI6 N 72t

JAV QVOUTIVY STL
AV AVO41IVY 006
JSHLLNOOT

AV QvVOuTivy 105
AV QVOouIIvy 00F
SPT AMH 96£8T
SSalppy

AD3HD SSINISNG T1:ZZ £202/6/2
dOLS JiH4VYL OF:TT £202/6/T
1004 T£:6 £202/6/T
W3I190ud J44VYL TS:ST €202/8/¢
39UV 1LV DNINNNY D0a 60:TT £202/8/¢
dO1S Ji4dvYHL 6€:6 £207/8/¢
d01S JIJIvHL 252 £202/8/¢
dOLS JI4VHL vE:9T €202/L/2
LNIVIdNOD ONIIYY SEIST £202/2/2Z
dOLS DHAVYL £S:2 €202/L/¢
anvyd TT:9T £202/9/¢
T13L OL 34VS ZT:TT €202/9/¢
ATNO NOILYWHOINI 61:£ €202/9/2
MD3IHD SSINISNG Tt:6T £202/5/2
dOLS DI43vHl vE€:6T €£202/S/¢
MD3HD SSANISNE SE:8T £202/S/¢
dOLS JH4VHL TEVT €£202/5/2
dOLS D4Vl ¥S:TT €202/S/e
MDIHD) SSANISNA ZETT €£202/5/¢
MD3IHD) SSIANISNG VE:6T £202/¥/¢
SSIMDIDIY 9541 €202/v/2
XO3IH) SSANISNG SS:IT £20T/v/2
AINO NOILVINHOANI 6€:£T £202/€/2
D3HD SSINISNG SZ:eT £202/€/T
MI3IHD IUV4IIM Z0:ZT £€20T/5/2
104LVd VYIXI 6€:0 £202/€/¢
TVININY 1SO1 TH#:6T £202/2/2
TIDIHIA SNOIASNS ¥Z:6T £202/2/2
dO1S D144Vl 85:ST £202/¢/z
dO1S JddVYL 6Z:4T £202/2/T
MJ3IHD SSANISNG OT:¥T £202/2/¢
MJ3IHD SSANISNS ZT:€T €202/2/T
M¥D3HD FUVHIIM TE9T £202/1/2

adAj ajeq

69¢S00€E7
L61S00€Z
9L1500¢€%
760S00€T
0S0S00€¢
S€0500€L
c0s0oce
856100£T
TS6V00ET
{98¥00¢€T
¥6L¥00ET
S9LV00ET
STLY00ET
ZL9700ET
0491700€C
S99100€T
¢rovooeT
0Z9v00ET
6T9700€C
99S¥00¢£T
¥SSY00ET
Y1sv00€2
LSPr00€ET
SOrvooET
00vP00ET
OrEVO0ET
YOEPOOET
662100¢tC
£€8CY00eT
TLEv00€ET
89Z100ET
ESTY00ET
SETY00EL

ON l1e3



NOLONIgNIV
NOLONIaNv
NOLONIaNV
NOLSNIaGNTv
NOLSNIanTv
110908S
yvoar
dv1ioar
dv1ioar
NOON3IYA
110504S
VZOANINL
yvT1ioar
Hv110ar
NOGNIUA
os14d
0s13xa
dvioar
FHHMS
JLIHMS
OsIia
NOLONIONTY
3L1T10IAY
LIHMS
31IHMS
0s13Na
os1Ma
Os1/Ia
Os13IMA
1LLI10IAY
VZOaN3InL
VZOONIWL
os13a
os1HIa

02 ‘s3yvo1oa
0D ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘S3Y010a
02 ‘s3yo104a
02 ‘s3¥0104d
0D ‘s3y0104a
02 's3yo1od

$34010d
02 ‘s3¥0104a
02 ‘5380104
02 ‘'s3¥07100a
02 ‘s3¥o10a
0D ‘s3o10a
00 ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘s;yo10a
02 's34010d
0D 's340104
02 's3H010a
0D 'S3¥0100
00 ‘S3H0100
0D ‘S3WO104g
02 ‘s3y0o104a
0D ‘S3¥01040
02 ‘Ss3401040
02 ‘53¥010d
02 ‘5340104
02 ‘S3Y0104a
02 'S340104a
02 ‘S3¥010a
0D ‘s3¥0104a
02 ‘S3¥010a
02 ‘'Ss340100
02 ‘s3¥010d
02 ‘s3yo10da

JAVHISS T0T
JAV TVHLINID 60T
1S QY€ S 00¢
1SHI9S10T

AV QVONTIVY TOS
JAV IVHINID OV
ISHL9T N TOT
AV avOulivy 00tT
JAV AVOHTIVY 10S
1S HL8 N 00Z

AV VOUTIvd TOS
AV avoulivy 105
AV TVYLINDD STE
AV QVOUTIVY 00PT
JAV QVOUTIVY TOS
JAV GYOH1IVY 6001
LS HLO9T N 80T
JAV QVOUTIVY 105
1S HiFS 001

JAV QVOHIIvY 00L
JAV AVOuIVY T0S
IS H1¥ S 00T

ST AMH 96€8T
JAV H1S 5002

JAV 3AISTIiH 00ST
JAV TVULNID 20T
N1 VYNNV3dd 00C
JAV QvOdivY 0ot
N1 YNNY3td 002
JAV QvOyTivy 109
JAV 3QISTIH Zooe
JAV TVULNID 68
JAV QVOHTIVY 00F
JAY avOouTivy 0ov

dNMOTIOH ST:0T £20Z/91/2
dNMOTIO4 Z¥:6 €20T/91/2
dNMOTIOL £2:6 €202/91/2
dNMOTI04 ¥Z:6 £202/9T/¢
dNMOTIO04 £S:8 £20Z/9T/2
1081Vvd VHLXI S2°2¢ £20Z/ST/C
TIAID FAYES OL LdINILLY €9°ST €20Z/ST/T
dOLS D134vyL ZO:ET €202/ST/¢
MDIHD SSINISNS SS:S £202/5T/¢
WIIHD FUVAIIM BETZ €£20Z/¥T/T
NJIHD SSANISNG TETE €T0Z/¥T/C
NIFHD SSANISNE 65T £20Z/¥T/2
NI XV3IY8 ¥0:6 £T0Z/vT/T
dOLS JId4vH1 £0:8 €£202/vT/T
¥23HD SSINISNE SS6T €20T/ET/T
¥DIHD SSANISNG T16:9T £202/€1/¢
MNIIHD FUVAIIM ¥2:9T €20T/€T/T
MJ3HI SSANISNG 6T:L £2OT/ET/T
MJIHD SSAINISNE 60:0Z £202/TT/T
d01S DI44vHL SO:LT £202/2T/¢
ALINDIF 410 ONIHLYIYE £2:1T €202/T1/2
AYVIOUNE YT:TT €202/21/T
IVININY JAISSIYDOV 8E:02 €202/TT/T
dOLS Jl44VHL 22:9T £20Z/11/2
dOL1S J144vH1 £T:9T €202/11/2
TIVD INOHd £0:ST £20T/T1/2
dO1S D44V L €0:vT £202/11/2
MJIHD SSINISNE STIET €20T/1T/T
dOLS J144vYL TOET €£20T/TT/C
a3yid SLOHS 00:€ £202/11/2
Q3414 SLOHS €2:0¢ £202/0T/2
70Y41LVd VH1X3 9€:8T €£202/01/¢
NI3IHD SSINISNG 90:ST £20Z/0T/¢
WIIHD SSINISNE EV:ET €20Z/01/T

SET900€T
Z€T1900€T
TET900ET
0£T900£T
971900¢cT
S80900€¢
9t0900€¢
ST0900€C
846S00€C
6S6S00EL
85S6SN0ET
076500€C
858S00ET.
818500t¢
L18S00¢€¢
S6/4S00€T
€64S00EC
CTLS00EL
9£9500¢¢
199S00¢€¢
6¥9500¢€T
679900¢€C
S846500¢Ee
Y¥SSN0ET
EVSSN0ET
T€SSN0ET
€TSSN0ET
919S00EL
2TSS00EC
8G1S00ET
| X4 451801 X4
86£S00€C
TLESNOET
reSO0ET



ALIHMS
LIHMS
ILHMS
31IHMS
I1IHMS
A1IHMS
ALHMS
ALHMS
ILHMS
IHHMS
os1Ia
0s13id
NOLDNIaNV
J11ITOIAY
JLIHMS
NOLONIaNIV
VZOON3INL
VZOanN3IwnL
VZOANIAL
os1pia
Os1Pda
os13d
0s1/Ia
osT1Ma
ALLFTOIAY
NOAQN3IYA
NOGNIHA
NOGNIYA
NOGNIYA
NOGN3IHA
VZOGNIWL
VZOONIWL
NOLONIaNTV
NOLONIGNIV

02 ‘s3”o10a
02 ‘s3¥0104a
0D ‘s3¥010a¢
02 's34010a
02 ‘s3¥010da
02 'S34010d

S3¥0104a
02 ‘s3¥010d
00 ‘s3vo10a
02 ‘s3¥o104a
0D ‘s3¥0104a
02 ‘s3M010a
02 ‘S340104a
00 ‘s3¥0100a
0D ‘s3¥o10a
0D ‘SIHO100
02 ‘S34010a
02 'sI0104a
02 ‘s3¥0100a
02 ‘s3¥o104a
0D ‘S3¥o10a
02 ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘S380104
02 ‘s3¥0104d
02 ‘S3yo10d
00 ‘s3¥o10a
02 ‘'s3¥070a
0D 'S3¥01040
02 ‘s3yo10d
02 ‘sido1oa
0D 'S3¥010a
0D ‘s3¥010a
0J ‘S34010a
©2 ‘s3HO10a

3AV AvOuTivy T0S
1S Hiv N 00T

1S HIS N SOT

AV IVHINDD LLL
JAV QVOUTIVH OTTT
AV QVOYTIvd 0SE
AV QYOUTIVY TZET
AV QYOHTIVY OTTT
ISHITTSTOT

AV IVHLINID £4L
iSHiVYNOOT

JAV TVYINID OZY
1SH19ST0T

AV TWYLINID 60C
AV avOuiIvy 10S
AV QvOYTIvY ooY
AV VOV TOS
AV IVHINID £42
ISHI¥Y N 0OT

AV TVHINID T0Z
AV avoulivy 10S
1S HLOZ N 0T
1SHLIOTNOTT
AV IVHLINID LLL
IS Hiv S 10€
ISHITTSZ0T

ST AMH 96€£81
ISHITTSTOT
1SHL¥Y N 00T
1SHLIT S 00T
1SH16 N 00T

JAV TVULNID 60T
AV QVOuTIvd 00Y
JAV IVHLINID STE

MIIHD SSANISNE LT:1Z £202/61/T

M¥JIHD SSINISNG SE:0Z £202/6T/¢

¥D3HD SSIANISNG ££:0Z £202/61/2

XDJ3HD SSINISNG 8Z:0Z £20Z/6T/C

ND3HD SSANISNE €2:02 £202/6T/T

MD3IHO SSINISNE €T:6T £202/6T/2

MI3HD SSINISNG £0:9T £70Z/61/2

10HLVd VHiX 90:9T £202/61/2

WYYV SSINISNG £S:ST £202/61/2

TOYL1Vd YH1X3 TS:ST €£702/61/2

1004 19T €702/61/2

dO1S JIddvHl /S:9T £702/61/2

WYYV SSINISNG 8Y:ZT £202/61/2

AINIVIdINOD DNIDIYV £T:0Z £202/81/2

MD3IHD SSINISNE 80:6T £70Z/81/¢

MJ3IHD SSANISNE v:vT £20Z/8T/¢

MI3HD SSANISNE TOIT €202/LT/T

MI3HD SSANISNG TT:0Z £202/LT/T

MDIHD SSANISNE #1:07 £202/L1/¢

YIHLO ¥3AYIS OL LdNILLY 60:¢T £20T/L1/T

dNMOTI0d 60:0T £20Z/L1/2

YIHLO ¥IAYIS OL LAWALLY TO:¥T €20Z/L1/¢

TAID IAYIS OL LAWILLY 9S:ET £202/LT/2
43IHISIN IYNIWIND ZT:6 £202/LT/t

3QISLNO NOILY9ILSAANI INONS 00:EZ £70Z/9T/T

F1IIHIA SNOIDIISNS 2Z:¢T £702/91/2

TI¥D INOHd 0€:TZ £20Z/91/2

NJ3HD SSINISNE 8E:0T €202/91/2

1041Vd VHLX3 LE:0T €202/91/2

¥J3IHD SSINISNG 8Z:0Z £202/91/2

dO1S D44Vl €5:ST £202/9T/T

dNMOTIO] 60:ST £20Z/91/¢

MDIHD SSANISNE ZS'€T £207/9T/2

dNMOTIOd TE:ZT €£202/91/2

985900¢£¢
T85900¢T
085900¢tT
6.£5900¢€C
8£5900¢€Z
695900£¢T
055900¢€T
675900¢€¢
L1S900¢T
S9900£T
¥vS9008¢
T¥9900¢¢
8¢5900¢T
641900¢C
¥9¥900¢tT
LEY900€Z
9.€£900¢tT
€LE900¢et
TLES00ET
91€900¢£¢
ST€900£T
¥1€900¢tC
CTE900¢ET
SLT900€T
6v2900eT
6€2900£¢
5€¢900¢T
62¢900¢eT
LTTI00ET
SZZ900€£T
T8T900¢eC
S£1900¢g¢
091900¢€Z
TIST900€T



JHHMS
JLIHMS
¥vnoar
dv1ioar
yviioar
gviioar
dviioar
vyiavda
ALIHMS
1LIFT0IAY
NOQN3IHA
os1Ia
NOGNIHA
dvnoar
NOGNIUA
NOGNIYA
NOGNIYA
NOGNIHA
NOGNIHA
NOGNIY¥A
ALIHMS
JLHMS
NOLONIaNTVY
NOLONIGNTV
NOLONIaMVY
NOLONIANTY
NOLONIGNTY
NOLODNIan1v
NOLONIaN1v
NOLONIaNMV
NOLONIaNTVY
NOLSNianv
NOLODNIaNTV
NOANIYA

02 ‘s34070a
02 'S34070a
02 ‘S3¥010a
00 ‘s3¥O10a
02 ‘s3y010a
02 ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘SO10a
02 ‘SIHO10a
02 ‘Ss34010a
02 ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘s3¥o104a
0D ‘s3¥0100a
02 ‘s330100
02 'S340104d
02 ‘s3yo104a
02 ‘s|o10a
02 ‘53401040
02 ‘S3H0104a
02 ‘S3Y0104d
0D ‘s3¥010a
0D ‘s7HO0N0a
02 ‘SIM0104a
0D ‘s;yo10a
0D ‘SIHO10a
02 ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘s340104a
0D ‘S3¥010d
0D ‘Ss340104a
0D ‘s34010a
0D ‘'s340104
0D 's3¥0100
02 ‘s34010a
02 ‘S3¥0104a
0 ‘s340104

AV QvOoulivy 0s€
AV IVYLINID 244
1S HLY NOOT

JAV TVHLN3ID 605
AV QVOUTIVY 00
IS HITTISTOT

1S HIS N SOt

AVM LLIHYIN 00VT
JAV H1S S SOT

1S Qe N TOT

JAV IVUINID 02V
JAV IVHINID OTY
JAV AYOuH1IvY T0S
JAV IAISTHH ¥OL
1SHI9 N 0OOT

3AY QVONTIvd 70T
3AV TVHINID €0T
ISHITT S00Z

AV TVHINID 0091
AV TVHINID Oz¥
JAV TVYLNID OZv
1S 1ST S 001

AV AvOoHivy 00v
AV QvOu1ivi ZoT
AV AYOuUTivy 20T
JAV QVOU1IvY T0S
AV TVHINID €001
1S HIST N 00T
AV TVHINID €0€
1SH16 S 002

1S 1ST S 00T

1S Que s 00¢€
ISANZNT

AV QvOuTivy 20T

MD3IHD SSINISNE £0:0T £202/€2/T
MD3HD SSINISNE 00:0T €20Z/E2/T
1004 €T:6T €202/€2/T
dNMOTI0d SO:6T £202/52/2
MD3HD SSINISNG 9€:£LT €20/€¢/2
M23IHD SSIANISNSG 0T:ST £20Z/€Z/T
ABANVLS TIAID ZO:ST €20Z/€2/T
MDIHD JUVHA1IM €¥:6 £20T/€T/T
JONIT0IA DILSINOQ 9T:€T £20e/ee/e
WYYV TVIIN3QISIY €0:6T £202/2Z/2
TIVD ANOHd 8T:ZT £20Z/22/T
104LYd VH1X3 9%:TZ £202/12/2
MJ3IHD SSINISNG TEWT €202/12/2
11vD INOHJ 0S:€T £202/12/2
TIAID IAYIS OL LdWILLY 8Y:ET £202/12/2
dNMOTIOL 8S:TT £202/12/2
dNMOTIOS 6T:6 £202/TZ/T
d0LS J134vYL ¥7:8 £202/12/¢
dOLS Jiddvl 80:8 €z0¢/TZ/T
10¥.LVd VHIX3 92:9 £202/12/2
1041vd VYLX3 €€'T £202/12/T
dOLS DIVl 88T €20Z/0T/¢
MJ3IHD SSANISNE SE:9T £202/02/¢
dNMOTIOd TZ:9T £20z/02/2
dNMOTI0d 0S:vT £202/0Z/2
MD3IHD SSIANISNG TH:¥T €£202/0T/2
SLVIYHL TT'¥T £202/02/¢
dOLS DI34vYHL ST:0T £202/02/¢
dNMOT104 25:6 £202/02/T
dOLS D144Vl 8€:6 £202/0T/T
1IOVLINOD IVNSNISNOD E:6 £202/02/¢
1004 91:6 £20Z/02/¢
1004 20'6 £20Z/0z/t
dNMOTIOL 8S:8 £202/0Z/T

LSTL00EC
9S1.00€t
0ST/L00ET
8YTL00ET
VETLO0ET
9TTL00ET
€1TL005C
890L00€T
S€0£00€T
110L00€C
T96900€¢
688900¢€¢
078900¢C
¢18900t7
018900¢€¢
T08900€T
04£900€C
094900¢¢
S5£900¢€¢
0Ov/900€2
LE/900tT
¥0£900€¢C
889900¢¢
£89900¢c¢
€£9900¢¢
0499007
§99900¢€T
£€9200¢€7
879900¢€¢
979900¢¢
¥29900€L
819900¢£2
919900¢¢
ST9900¢€T



3L1370IAY
A11710IAVY
1LIFTI0IAY
ALLFI0IAY
311370IAV
NOLONIGNY
NOLONIaNTY
JLLTI0IAY
VZOOQNINL
VZOAN3INL
VZOGN3INL
VZOAN3IWL
AL1310IAV
VZOOUNINL
VZOON3IW.L
os1Mia
VZOONIAL
v11avda
v1avda
vy1iavda
vTliavda
VZOONINL
VZOANINL
VZOONIALL
VZOaN3IWL
VZOON3IAL
VZOGNIWL
svnoar
NOLONIaNTV
V1Havdda
NOLONIaNTV
NOLONIaNY
JLIHMS
JUHMS

02 ‘S3¥010a
0D ‘S34010a0
0D ‘s34010a
0D ‘S34010a
02 's340104
02 'S34010a
02 ‘S340104
02 'S3H010a
02 ‘S3¥0104
02 ‘S340104
(0 ‘S3¥070a
0D ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘s3u010a
03 ‘s340100
02 ‘S3¥0104a
0D ‘S34070a
0D ‘s3¥010a
0D ‘'S3Y010a
0D ‘sTO10a
02 ‘s3¥010a
02 ‘s3yo10a
02 's3¥01040
00 's3¥0104a
00 ‘s:O10a
0D ‘s34070a
02 ‘SIHOT0d
02 ‘S3¥010a
02 ‘S34010a
02 ‘s3¥0104a
02 ‘S34010a
02 ‘s380100
02 ‘s34010a
0D ‘S3¥010d

3AV QVOIIvY 0S€
JSHIITS 10T

1S H1S N SOT
JAVIVYINDD £LL
1SHIiP NOOT

AV QVOUTIVY ThE
AV avOoyTIvd 20T
JAV TVULINID Ot
1SHI1vY S 00¢

JS HLS N SOT

AV IVHIN3D LLL
ISHITTSTOT
ISHiI8SETT

3AV TVHLNID OTY
AV QvOodIIvy 01€
ST AMH 08€81
ISH1¥ S 00T

AV QVOYTIvY THE
3AV QVOYTIvY ZOoT
AV QVOYHTIVY TiE
JAV QYOXTIVY OTTT
AV QVOYTIvY T0E
ASHITISTOT

AV IVHINTD L2
ISHIS N SOT

1S Hiv NOOT

3AV TVHLNID 60T
AV QVOUTIVY OT€
JAV avOH1ivy oot
JAV IQISYIAIN 00
1S Qye so0z

JAV TVYLINID 02
AV IVHLINID 244
1SHIY N OOT

NJ3HD SSINISNE TZ:0T £20Z/92/2
MDIIHD SS3ANISNG ¥T:0Z €£202/9T/7
MXI3IHD SSINISNA 60:07 £20Z/92/7
MD3HD SSINISNE 60:0Z £202/92/2
10ULVd VY1X3 TO:0Z £202/92/¢
dNMOTIOL TO:¥T £202/92/7
dNMOTIOL PE:ZT £202/92/2
1004 8T:€ €202/92/¢
MD3IHD SSINISNE £5:0T €202/ST/?
MIIHD SSANISNG €5:0Z €202/S2/e
MI3HD SSANISNG L¥:0T £202/S2/¢
AI3HD SSANISNE ZP:0Z £202/52/%
123rens IVANIW 8T:0Z £20Z/52/¢
MDIHD SSANISNE 2T:0T £202/ST/E
MD3IHD SSINISNG ZT:0T £20T/ST/%
a3yl SLOHS 8€:/T £202/52/¢
dOLS D44V 8T:LT €T0T/St/e
MDIHD SSANISNE 8EET £20T/S5e/e
dNMOTIOL 8TET £202/52/¢
dNMOTIOE ZS'TT £202/52/T
MJIHD SSINISNG 2S:TT £202/ST/T
MD3IHD SSINISNG €T:0T £20T/ve/e
NIIHD SSANISNE €1:0Z €20T/¥T/T
%J3HD SSINISNG £0:0Z £202/vT/2
¥J3IHDI SSINISNG 6S:6T £20T/¥Z/t
MDIHD SSINISNE 96T €20Z/ve/T
dNMOTI04 ZT:8T £202/¥2/z

JOVINVQ ALYIdOYd TE:9T €202/vT/T

ADIHD SSANISNY SO-ET €20T/vT/e

LSIYO10W INAYINO 9€:6 €20Z/vE/T
IN3IQIDDV JI4dvYL 226 €202/ve/T

1041vd VUIX3 [¥'8 €202/vZ/T
MDIHD SSINISNG 62:TT £202/52/E
MNJIHI SSINISNG TTTZ £202/52/¢

€L5L00¢ee
695.L00¢€¢C
895/00¢7
£9S£00€T
995£00¢£Z
975.00¢€C
91S£00¢¢
€8VLO0ET
S5¥L00€T
¥SrL00¢€T
0s%£L00€C
8hvL00EC
9vv.L00€Z
vivL00t€
EvvL00EC
QCrL00€T
91¥L00¢€T
88¢£00¢ET
L8EL00¢ET
8L€L00€C
£1€100€T
TZEL00ET
0ZEL00ET
8TEL00ET
9TELO0ET
STEL00ET
90€L00€T
16CL00¢ET
JATALY 474
€geLooee
81¢L00€C
€12L00€¢
€LTL00€ET
TL1.00€C



ALIHMS
yvnoar
avoar
dv1ioar

(O YE) [}

(OLRED 4]

NOAON3¥A
NOLONiIanv
NOQN3IYA
NOON3I¥A
LLT0IAY
FLF0IAY

02 ‘s3¥o10q
02 's3¥010a

S3¥010a
02 ‘s3M010q
02 ‘s3x010a
02 ‘s3y010a
03 ‘s3¥01704q
02 ‘s3¥0104q
0D ‘s3¥0704a
02 ‘s34010a
02 ‘s340104
0) ‘s3¥010q

JAV IVHINDD TOET
1S HivT N 00T
ASHIZT N OOT
AS HL¥T N 00T

JAV IVHLINID OzY
IAV AvOyTIvY Tos
1S HI8 N 00T
1SHL8S 007
1SHiZ N oOT

AV QYOYTIVY TOS

JAY VHINID Ozp
ISHI9S 10T

SLVIUHL €T:0Z €£202/82/2
dOLS D43Vl 8b:vT £20Z/82/7
dO1S J134vY1 0Z:0T £207/82/2
dO1S Jl4vYL 956 £202/87/2

104Lvd YYiX3 82T €£20z/87/2
AD3HI SSINISNG TH:TZ €202/12/7
AONIDY HIHLO ISISSY 9G:£T €e0z/L2/e
dO1S J3VYL SS:6 €£202/L2/T
dOLS JI44VH1 8T:6 £202/L2/T
AIIHI SSINISAE £2:£ €202/L2/2
TOYLYd Yd1X3 95:€7Z £202/9¢/2
AIIHD SSINISNG 82:07 £202/92/7

998.00€2
S€8/00¢€Z
564£00€T
164/00¢T
SS4/00¢€2
IvLL00E2
689/00¢7
9%9.L00£T
6£9200€¢
619£00£T
€09/00¢€z
£45/00¢€2



Petty Cash

Hi-Fi Savings Account
Checking Account
Conservation Trust Fund
ColoTrust

Bonds

Business Account (AFLAC)
Playground Account/Donatic
TOTAL

TREASURER'S REPORT
TOWN OF DOLORES
MARCH 2, 2023

$300.00
$736,711.39
$78,076.03
$9,938.98
$1,082,132.71
$567,263.93
$7,251.97
$3,196.33
$2,484,871.34



"1.20Z Y2JEN WOL) 8SBI09P %ty B PUB ZZ0Z YIJEN WO} 9S80I0UI %07 © Si WINJSI PaUIquIod £Z0Z Y2JEN JNO :SIUsWIWo) Jainseal] £20Z 'S YoJen

TLOVIELS ¢

24281296

2D

81'GZL'6E9 ¢

000°00.$
40 13sang
€202 ¥o4d
a3ild3aniood 3g
OL ONINIVIWIY
INNOWY

8205981 $ | c6°0L¥'Ey8 § | 849.8'SL8
£7'eG6'2. S| ¥89pS'eL i
0£'v20'€01L $ 1 819268 | 4
06'EY1 26 68'6LL'CL _ b
v26¥9'18 S| E€v /018 ]
2969208 ¢ | 09'8.2'08
|56'€€8'293 06'G82'29%
YOVIGL9 S| LLLLZYS
¥y'0LLZ9 S| G¥'8689
09°8E1°6F $]59919CS
00€e8'eS  $lZ1esLvy S| 26401°96
or'zroLL  $l6v1ezes  $1006LE£99 i
28%2809 $162Sk.LY9 S| Ob'S¥BZ9 i $
€202 ze0z 1202

L96pS'.€E  § | bvEve'ize Ly8L'Z62  $ STV.LOL
95'v26'82  § | v8'¥6S'6E 121888l § E]
Svi0'0e  $ | L2°GLG'eE 19028ve  § AON
everEry  § | 66'€9L'PE G.'688'Ge  § 120
82900y $ | 92°2£8°0E 8v'6.962 ¢ 1d3S
6G°£98'GE 20°'992'2¥ ¥Z LIE'EE ony
£8'G¥E 8¢ £5°1€8'6E 8t'LO0'EE Alnr
LLZrI'LE £2°019'22 G8'VGEZ aNnr
0L'186'€2 1562062 oLiszoz % AV
GG'08p' 2 £2°699'C2 Lyesz'oe $ Y
90°'20Z 22 £1'696G1 99°Eh2 6l 4 UV
GZ'e20'8l 16'7.6'61 08'€68'2Z ¢ g3d
G2'0s5'2¢  §|€£27e6'/2 €.°G82'82 ¢ NYr
102 9102 SLoZ anuaAdy
xe)

sajeg Juon

10144 hoh.

poAIaIaYy

Yuow

u pajysod

siejjog

(zz0z ANNC NI AINIFNOD) SAXVL VNVNLINYIN 18 STTVS S3U01040 30 NMOL

NNIATY XV1 S3TVS SFAH0T0d 40 NMOL




3/3/2023 2:54:11PM TOWN OF DOLORES Page 1 of 2
j{\ N \)AK\{ Budget Analysis
RERRECENTO Reporting As Of 01/01/2022 to 01/31/2022
8 Slo or Reporting Department: 10 - General
Account Description THE Y fAK . AccountNo. Current Month  YTD Actual  Budget Year YTD Variance % Used
Property Tax 10-311-100 0.00 0.00 86,000.00  -86,000.00 0.00
Sales Tax Revenue 10-313-100 35,610.16 35,610.16 508,419.00 -472,808.84 7.00
Cigarette Tax Revenue 10-314-100 193.31 193.31 1,000.00 -806.69 18.33
Empire Franchise Fees 10-318-101 3,808.62 3,808.62 45,000.00 -41,191.38 8.46
Cable T.V. Franchise 10-318-102 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.00
Atmos Energy Franchise 10-318-103 15,649.18 15,649.18 14,000.00 1,649.18 111.78
Commnet Tower Lease 10-318-105 718.34 718.34 7,500.00 -6,781.66 9.58
Atmos Energy Tower Lease 10-318-107 2,087.61 2,087.61 1,800.00 287.61 115.98
Liquor Licenses 10-321-101 0.00 0.00 3,250.00 -3,250.00 0.00
Business Licenses 10-321-102 1,225.00 1,225.00 3,800.00 -2,5675.00 32.24
Building Permits 10-322-101 2,861.99 2,861.99 14,132.00  -11,270.01 20.25
Dog Licenses 10-322-103 200.00 200.00 800.00 -600.00 25.00
Grant Revenue 10-334-102 0.00 0.00 122,238.73 -122,238.73 0.00
Lottery Funds 10-335-101 0.00 0.00 11,360.00  -11,360.00 0.00
Other Miscellaneous Revenue 10-341-102 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.00
Parks & Recreation Revenue 10-346-101 50.00 50.00 1,000.00 -950.00 5.00
Court Fines and Fees 10-351-101 300.00 300.00 7,500.00 -7,200.00 4.00
Interest 10-361-101 53.68 53.68 500.00 -446.32 10.74
Playground Donation Joe Rowell 10-362-100 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.00
TOTAL INCOME 62,757.89 62,757.89 836,299.73 -773,541.84 7.50
Town Magistrate 10-412-117 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Trustee Education 10-413-320 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
Contributions 10-413-800 500.00 500.00 21,350.00 20,850.00 2.34
Easter Egg Hunt/TH Christmas 10-413-812 167.69 167.69 1,000.00 832.31 16.77
Elections 10-414-310 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00
Interim Town Manager 10-415-108 1,966.25 1,956.25 25,000.00 23,043.75 7.83
Treasurer 10-415-111 633.32 633.32 9,816.00 9,182.68 6.45
Administrative Clerk 10-415-112 981.82 981.82 12,298.00 11,316.18 7.98
Town Clerk 10-415-113 795.45 795.45 9,332.00 8,636.55 8.52
Maintenance Salaries 10-415-114 5,240.98 5,240.98 49,442.00 44,201.02 10.60
Maintenance Overtime 10415-116 654.07 654.07 3,000.00 2,345.93 21.80
Board Payment 10-415-117 0.00 0.00 9,087.50 9,087.50 0.00
Health/Dental/Life - Insurance 10-415-210 6,594.65 6,594.65 32,577.00 25,982.35 20.24
Employee Payroll Taxes 10-415-220 919.98 919.98 11,225.00 10,305.02 8.20
Employee Retirement 10-415-230 281.07 281.07 3,121.00 2,839.93 9.01
State Compensation 10-415-260 0.00 0.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00
Subscriptions or Dues 10-415-310 1,175.06 1,175.06 11,314.00 10,138.94 10.39
Codification 10-415-311 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
Administrative Education 10-415-320 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
Administrative Consulting 10-415-325 0.00 0.00 7.500.00 7,500.00 0.00
Town Attorney 10-415-330 481.25 481.25 10,000.00 9,518.75 4.81
Audit Fees 10-415-331 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Gas Expenses 10-415-410 273.45 27345 3,000.00 2,726.55 9.12
Electric Service 10-415-411 39.90 39.90 425.00 385.10 9.39
Trash Removal 10-415-413 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00
Admin. Purchased Services 10-415-420 1,874.15 1,874.15 29,625.00 27,750.85 6.33
Copier Lease 10415430 68.70 68.70 3,950.00 3,881.30 1.74
Liability Insurance 10-415-520 2,386.72 2,386.72 9,000.00 6,613.28 26.52
Telephone/Internet/Fiber 10-415-530 340.40 340.40 5,000.00 4,659.60 6.81
Advertising & Legal Notices 10-415-540 31557 315.57 7,000.00 6,684.43 4.51
Travel & Mileage 10-415-580 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
Postage & Freight 10-415-602 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Office Supplies 10-415-610 196.14 196.14 8,000.00 7,803.86 245
Uniforms 10-415-613 0.00 0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 0.00



3/3/2023 2:54:11PM

TOWN OF DOLORES

Budget Analysis

Reporting As Of 01/01/2022 to 01/31/2022

Reporting Department: 10 - General

Page 2 of 2

Account Description Account No. Current Month  YTD Actual Budget Year YTD Variance % Used
Supplies for Town Hall 10-415-615 0.00 0.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 0.00
Web Page/Business Enhancement 10-415-640 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Miscellaneous 10-415-650 109.51 109.51 5,000.00 4,890.49 2.19
Dog Control Costs 10-415-655 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00
Equipment 10-415-700 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
Capital Outlay 10-415-701 0.00 0.00 313,835.00 313,835.00 0.00
Master Comp. Plan (Land Use Code) 10-419-316 4,200.00 4,200.00 9,439.00 5,239.00 44,50
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARP¢ 10-419-326 0.00 0.00 91,155.00 91,1565.00 0.00
Town Hall Building Maintenance 10-419-611 0.00 0.00 14,210.00 14,210.00 0.00
Sheriff and Jail Expense 10-420-330 12,795.95 12,795.95 210,000.00 197,204.05 6.09
Building Inspector Salaries 10-424-118 3,480.00 3,480.00 45,000.00 41,520.00 7.73
Land Surveyor Services 10-431-535 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
Tree Expenses/Trimming 10-451-410 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00
Park Employees Seasonal Salari 10-452-119 0.00 0.00 10,619.00 10,619.00 0.00
Park Electricity 10452411 271.16 271.16 6,000.00 5,728.84 4,52
Park Maintenance Equipment/Machinery 10-452-501 0.00 0.00 11,5659.00 11,559.00 0.00
Park Maintenance Supplies 10-452-610 153.48 153.48 5,000.00 4,846.52 3.07
Park Bldg./Grounds Maintenance 10452-615 522.65 522.65 45,373.00 44,850.35 1.15
Joe Rowell Park Improvements 10-452-708 1,500.00 1,500.00 14,750.00 13,250.00 10.17
Flanders Improvements 10-452-709 0.00 0.00 11,883.00 11,883.00 0.00
Conservation Trust Fund/Lottery Expens 10-452-900 0.00 0.00 16,020.00 16,020.00 0.00
Plaground Donation Expense 10-452-901 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00
Solar Lease Purchase Principal DSB 10-500-803 0.00 0.00 1,291.00 1,291.00 0.00
Solar Lease Purchase Interest DSB 10-500-804 0.00 0.00 397.00 397.00 0.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 48,909.37 48,909.37  1,149,793.50 1,100,884.13 4.25

TOTAL INCOME 62,757.89 62,757.89 836,299.73 -773,541.84 7.50

NET TOTALS 13,848.52 13,848.52 -313,493.77  327,342.29 4.42



3/3/2023 2:54:47PM

TOWN OF DOLORES Page 1 of 1

Budget Analysis
Reporting As Of 01/01/2022 to 01/31/2022
Reporting Department: 20 - Street

Account Description Account No. Current Month  YTD Actual Budget Year YTD Variance % Used
Specific Ownership Tax 20-311-101 1,188.75 1,188.75 11,000.00 -9,811.25 10.81
Sales Tax Revenue 20-313-100 29,135.59 29,135.59 302,342.00 -273,206.41 9.64
HUTF Revenue 20-330-100 2,451.85 2,451.85 27,000.00 -24,548.15 9.08
Road & Bridge 20-330-101 0.00 0.00 11,686.00 -11,686.00 0.00
Other Miscellaneous Revenue 20-341-102 1,344.62 1,344.62 0.00 1,344.62 0.00
Bank Interest 20-361-101 35.7¢9 35.79 260.00 -224.21 13.77

TOTALINCOME ' 34,156.60 34,156.60 352,288.00 -318,131.40 9.70
STREET PAINTING 20-20-431 0.00 0.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 0.00
Treasurer 20-415-111 633.32 633.32 9,816.00 9,182.68 6.45
Administrative Clerk 20-415-112 894.50 894.50 12,298.00 11,403.50 7.27
Town Clerk 20-415-113 717.57 717.57 9,332.00 8,614.43 7.69
Maintenance Overtime 20-415-116 654.07 654.07 4,700.00 4,045.93 13.92
Interim Town Manager 20-415-118 1,956.25 1,956.25 25,000.00 23,043.75 7.83
Board Payment 20415-119 0.00 0.00 1,687.50 1,687.50 0.00
Heatlh/Dental/Life - Insurance 20-415-210 6,594.65 6,594.65 32,577.00 25,982.35 20.24
Payroll Taxes 20-415-220 548.10 548.10 8,000.00 7,451.90 6.85
Employee Retirement 20-415-230 171.51 171.51 3,000.00 2,828.49 5.72
Building Inspector 20-424-118 1,160.00 1,160.00 15,000.00 13,840.00 7.73
Maintenance Salaries 20-431-115 2,981.54 2,981.54 49,442.00 46,460.46 6.03
Town Attorney 20-431-330 481.25 481.25 10,000.00 9,5618.75 4.81
Audit Fees 20-431-331 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Weed Control 20-431-340 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
Maintenance on Equipment 20-431-341 1,089.49 1,099.49 11,000.00 9,900.51 10.00
Gas 20431410 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
Electric Service 20431411 146.15 146.15 1,000.00 853.85 14.62
Street Light Electricity - 20431412 2,199.22 2,199.22 26,000.00 23,800.78 8.46
Liability Insurance 20-431-520 2,386.72 2,386.72 9,000.00 6,613.28 26.52
Telephone/Internet/Fiber 20-431-530 340.40 340.40 5,000.00 4,659.60 6.81
Small Tools & Equipment 20-431-612 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00
Uniforms 20-431-613 0.00 0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 0.00
Traffic Signs 20-431-614 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.00
Parts and Supplies 20-431-618 142.02 142.02 6,200.00 6,057.98 2.29
Fuel and Lubricants 20-431-626 1,622.90 1,522.90 20,000.00 18,477.10 7.61
Miscellaneous/Cont. 20-431-650 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00
Equipment 20-431-700 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
Capital Outlay 20-431-701 0.00 0.00 43,120.00 43,120.00 0.00
Patching & Gravel 20-431-730 0.00 0.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 0.00
Lease Purchase Principal - CAT or Solal 20-500-803 2,764.53 2,764.53 34,700.00 31,935.47 7.97
Lease Purchase Interest - CAT or Solar 20-500-804 0.00 0.00 12,433.00 12,433.00 0.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 27,394.19 27,394.19 407,105.50 379,711.31 6.73

TOTAL INCOME 34,156.60 34,156.60 352,288.00 -318,131.40 9.70

NET TOTALS 6,762.41 6,762.41 -54,817.50 61,579.91 -12.34



3/3/2023 2:57:54PM

TOWN OF DOLORES

Budget Analysis
Reporting As Of 01/01/2022 to 01/31/2022
Reporting Department: 30 - Water Department

Page 1 of 1

Account Description Account No. Current Month  YTD Actual  Budget Year YTD Variance % Used
Development Fees 30-322-102 650.00 650.00 0.00 650.00 0.00
Grant Revenue 30-334-101 0.00 0.00 25,000.00  -25,000.00 0.00
Water User Fees 30-340-100 20,789.36 20,789.36 243,000.00 -222,210.64 8.56
New Water Taps 30-340-101 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 100.00
Water Dock 30-340-102 1,910.00 1,910.00 23,000.00 -21,090.00 8.30

TOTAL INCOME 27,849.36 27,849.36 295,500.00 -267,650.64 9.42
Treasurer 30-415-111 633.32 633.32 9,816.00 9,182.68 6.45
Administrative Clerk 30415-112 894.50 894.50 12,298.00 11,403.50 7.27
Town Clerk 30415-113 717.57 717.57 9,332.00 8,614.43 7.69
Board Payment 30-415-117 0.00 0.00 1,687.50 1,687.50 0.00
Interim Town Manager 30415-118 1,956.25 1,956.25 25,000.00 23,043.75 7.83
Health/Dental/Life - Insurance 30415-210 6,594.65 6,594.65 32,577.00 25,982.35 20.24
Payroll Taxes 30415-220 456.96 456.96 7,820.00 7,363.04 5.84
Employee Retirement 30-415-230 136.71 136.71 3,121.00 2,984.29 4.38
State Compensation 30-415-260 0.00 0.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00
Maintenance Salaries 30-433-115 2,981.54 2,981.54 49,442.00 46,460.46 6.03
Maintenance Overtime 30-433-116 654.07 654.07 5,000.00 4,34593 13.08
Subscriptions & Dues 30-433-310 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
Public Works Education 30-433-321 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
Town Attorney 30-433-330 481.25 481.25 10,000.00 9,518.75 4,81
Audit Fees 30-433-331 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Licensed Operator 30-433-342 473.52 473.52 3,500.00 3,026.48 13.53
Laboratory Services 30433-343 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00
Water Permit Fees 30-433-344 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
Plant-Electricity 30433-411 1,653.20 1,553.20 20,000.00 18,446.80 7.77
Plant-Propane 30433414 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
Maint. on Equip. Purchased Ser 30-433-431 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
Plant-Maintenance of Equipment 30433432 0.00 0.00 750.00 750.00 0.00
Liability Insurance 30433-520 2,386.72 2,386.72 8,831.00 6,444.28 27.03
Telephone/Internet 30-433-530 340.40 340.40 5,000.00 4,659.60 6.81
Travel & Mileage 30-433-580 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
Postage & Freight 30433-602 0.00 0.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00
Office Supplies 30433-610 555.40 555.40 800.00 244.60 69.43
Building & Grounds Maintenance 30-433-611 0.00 0.00 750.00 750.00 0.00
Small Tools/Equipment 30433-612 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
Uniforms 30-433-613 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
Chemicals 30-433-617 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00
Parts & Supplies 30433-618 535.82 535.82 25,900.00 25,364.18 2.07
Miscellaneous/Contingency 30-433-650 203.00 203.00 5,000.00 4,797.00 4.06
Equipment 30433-700 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
Capital Outlay 30433-701 0.00 0.00 55,300.00 55,300.00 0.00
Fire Hydrants 30-433-707 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
DSB Water Loan Payment 30-500-800 2,034.14 2,034.14 18,306.00 16,271.86 11.11
DSB Water Interest Payment 30-500-801 0.00 0.00 6,102.00 6,102.00 0.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 23,589.02 23,589.02 352,132,50  328,543.48 6.70

TOTAL INCOME 27,849.36 27,849.36 295,500.00 -267,650.64 9.42

NET TOTALS 4,260.34 4,260.34 -56,632.50 60,892.84 -7.52



3/3/2023 2:58:18PM

TOWN OF DOLORES

Budget Analysis
Reporting As Of 01/01/2022 to 01/31/2022
Reporting Department: 40 - Sewer Department

Page 1 of 1

Account Description Account No. Current Month  YTD Actual Budget Year YTD Variance % Used
Sewer Users Fees 40-340-100 17,505.47 17,505.47 189,000.00 -171,494.53 9.26
New Sewer Taps 40-340-101 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 100.00

TOTAL INCOME 22,005.47 22,005.47 193,500.00 -171,494.53 11.37
Treasurer 40-415-111 633.34 633.34 9,816.00 9,182.66 6.45
Administrative Clerk 40415-112 894.48 894.48 12,298.00 11,403.52 7.27
Town Clerk 40415-113 717.58 717.58 9,332.00 8,614.42 7.69
Interim Town Manager 40-415-117 1,956.25 1,956.25 25,000.00 23,043.75 7.83
Board Payment 40-415-118 0.00 0.00 1,687.50 1,687.50 0.00
Health/Dental/Life - Insurance 40-415-210 6,594.65 6,594.65 32,577.00 25,982.35 20.24
Payroll Taxes 40-415-220 456.98 456.98 7,820.00 7,363.02 5.84
Employee Retirement 40-415-230 136.70 136.70 3,121.00 2,984.30 4.38
State Compensation 40-415-260 0.00 0.00 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00
Maintenance Salaries 40-432-115 2,981.54 2,981.54 49,442.00 46,460.46 6.03
Maintenance Overtime 40-432-116 654.03 654.03 5,000.00 4,345.97 13.08
Subscriptions & Dues 40-432-310 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00
Public Works Education 40-432-321 100.00 100.00 2,000.00 1,900.00 5.00
Town Attorney 40-432-330 481.25 481.25 10,000.00 9,518.75 4.81
Audit Fees 40-432-331 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
Maint on Equip Purchase Servic 40-432-341 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00
Operator/Licensed Services 40-432-342 0.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 0.00
Laboratory Services 40-432-343 206.00 206.00 8,000.00 7.794.00 2.58
Waste Water Permit 40-432-345 0.00 0.00 1,700.00 1,700.00 0.00
Electric Service 40-432-411 637.90 637.90 6,802.00 6,164.10 9.38
Maintenance of Plant Equipment 40-432-432 1,688.25 1,688.25 0.00 -1,688.25 0.00
Liability Insurance 40-432-520 2,386.67 2,386.67 8,831.00 6,444.33 27.03
Telephone Service 40-432-530 340.39 340.39 5,000.00 4,659.61 6.81
Travel & Mileage 40-432-580 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00
Postage & Freight 40-432-602 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00
Office Supplies 40-432-610 200.00 200.00 500.00 300.00 40.00
Plant Building & Grounds Maint 40-432-611 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00
Small Tools & Equipment 40-432-612 0.00 0.00 750.00 750.00 0.00
Uniforms 40-432-613 0.00 0.00 1,400.00 1,400.00 0.00
Chemicals 40-432-617 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
Parts and Supplies 40-432-618 2,340.54 2,340.54 5,000.00 2,659.46 46.81
Miscellaneous/Contingency 40-432-650 204.96 204.96 2,500.00 2,295.04 8.20
Equipment 40-432-700 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
Solar Lease Purchase Principal DSB 40-500-803 0.00 0.00 8,500.00 8,500.00 0.00
Solar Lease Purchase Interest DSB 40-500-804 0.00 0.00 698.00 698.00 0.00

TOTAL EXPENSES 23,611.51 23,611.51 232,074.50  208,462.99 10.17

TOTAL INCOME 22,005.47 22,005.47 193,500.00 -171,494.53 11.37

NET TOTALS -1,606.04 -1,606.04 -38,574.50 36,968.46 4.16



Town of Dolores
Resolution No R523

SERIES 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN

AGREEMENT WITH ONWARD! A LEGACY FOUNDATION D/B/A LOST
CANYON BIKE AND SKATE PARK COMMITTEE T PLAN AND FUUNDRAISE

a5 IR SRS L SRSNE = =il

FOR THE CONSTRUCTING OF A BIKE PARK IN JOE ROWELL PARK

WHEREAS, the Town of Dolores (“Town”) master plan for Joe Rowell Park identified
the construction of a bike and skate park as a priority that will benefit the community and citizens
of the Town of Dolores;

WHEREAS, the Lost Canvon Bike and Skate Park Committee has organized as a
grassroots network of persons interested in the completion of the bike and skate park and has joined
Onward! A Legacy Foundation, a not-for-profit entity having tax exempt status with the Internal
Revenue Service as one of its affiliate organizations (hereinafter “Committee/Onward!”);

WHEREAS the Committee/Onward! and the Town of Dolores wish to enter into an
agreement whereby the Committee/Onward! will fundraise for the bike and skate park and provide
volunteer services under the direction of the. Town for the planning, design, construction and
maintenance of the bike and skate park under the direction of the Town.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR
THE TOWN OF DOLORES, COLORADO:

Section 1. In support of the bike and skate park project the Town Trustees approve the
agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and authorize the Town Manager to enter into the
agreement in the Town’s behalf,

Section 2,  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
passage and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13" day of March 2023.

Mayor
ATTEST:

Town Clerk



Exhibit A to Resolution
Onward! A legacy foundation dba Lost Canyon Bike and Skate Park

This agreement is entered into as of March _ , 2023, by and between Onward! A Legacy
Foundation d/b/a the Lost Canyon Bike and Skate Park Committee (hereinafter referred to as
“Committee/Onward!”. Onward! is the physical sponsor of the Lost Canyon Bike and Skate Park
Committee, a nonprofit organization, operating under its 501¢3 tax exemption and whose address is
32 North Chestnut, Cortez, CO 81321, and the TOWN OF DOLORES (hereinafter referred to as the
“Town”), whose address is P.O. Box 630, Dolores, CO 81323.

This agreement between the TOWN and the Committee/Onward! is meant as a good-faith effort
between the parties to establish a bike and skate park at a location to be determined at Joe Rowell
Park, with a legal address of 101 Railroad Avenue, Dolores, CO,, 81323

NOW THEREFORE, hereto, with intention of being legally bound, the parties’ contract and agree
as follows:

The TOWN:

1. Consistent with its park plan and after édnsideﬁng the advice of professionals, such
as an engineer and surveyor, designate a location for the bike and skate park within
Joe Rowell Park.

2. The Town shall at all times maintain exclusive ownership and control over the bike
and skate park within Joe Rowell Park and nothing herein shall be construed to be a
delegation of its exclusive authority to enter into contracts for the design and
construction of the bike and skate park or to expend funds.

3. The Town will retain final decision—mhking authority and will guide the process of

the design, construction and maintenance of the bike and skate park.

4. Nothing in this MOU shall be deemed to restrict the authority of the Town to adopt
by resolution and ordinance restrictions and rules on the use of bike and skate park
area in accordance with law.

5. The Town Manager will be primary contact under this agreement on behalf of the
Town.

The Committee/Onward!

1. Maintain a primary contact person with whom Town Staff may work with, updating
telephone, email, and mailing contact information as necessary.



Provide the Town with proof of the Committee’s affiliation with Onward! tax exempt
status, and immediately update the Town on any change of the legal relationship
between the Committee and Onward!

The Committee/Onward! acknowledges that it has no authority to represent the Town,
expend funds on behalf of the Town, commit the Town to expending public funds,
and has not authority to bind the Town to any contract or other legal commitment.

The Committee/Onward acknowledges and understands that the Town is the sole
owner of Joe Rowell Park and the area where the bike and skate park are proposed
that any action in furtherance of the design, construction and maintenance of the bike
and skate park require lawful approval of the Town Board of Trustees, and that once
constructed, such improvements become the sole property of the Town under its
exclusive control.

The Committee/Onward! must represent to the public and all third parties that it is not
acting on the Town’s behalf and does not have authority to commit the Town to any
course of action or contract. It must not represent that it is fundraising on behalf of
the Town.

The Committee/Onward! is intended to act as an informal advisory body and as such
will provide ideas, general advice and non-professional consulting services free of
charge to assist the Town in the process of designing and constructing the bike park.
It may recommend contractors who can provide professional design and construction
services for the Town, It may, under the direction of the Town and on such conditions
as it may impose, organize volunteer hours for the design, construction and
maintenance of the bike and skate park.

The Committee/Onward! may fundraise and apply for grants, in its own name, to raise
funds for the design, construction and maintenance of the bike and skate park with
the understating that all such funds must be transferred to the Town of Dolores prior
to their expenditure. The Committee/Onward will report to the Town in a regular basis
of its fundraising efforts.

All volunteers working on Town property will execute a release of liability holding
the Town of Dolores harmless from liability on a form satisfactory to the Town
Attorney.

The term of this agreement shall run from March 28, 2023, until terminated by either
party.



Town Manager Ken Charles Authorized agent for Onward! a Legacy
Foundation



Town of Dolores
Resolution No

SERIES 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE DOLORES COMMUNITY CENTER ASSOCIATION

WHEREAS, the continued operation of the Dolores Community Center located at 400
Riverside, Dolores, Colorado (hereinafter “Center”) is of vital importance to the citizens of the
Town of Dolores and larger community;

WHEREAS the Community Center is presently owned by the Dolores Community Center
Association, a Colorado nonprofit corporation (hereinafter “Association”);

WHEREAS the Dolores Community Center Association and the Town of Dolores have
entered into discussions on how to keep the continued operation of the Community Center viable
and sustainable;

WHEREAS the Town of Dolores and the 'As"sqcié"cion have agreed to enter into a lease
agreement whereby the Association agrees to lease the Center to the Town but will continue to
operate the Center during the term of the Lease

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR
THE TOWN OF DOLORES, COLORADO:

Section 1, The Town Trustees approve the lease and operating agreement attached hereto
as Exhibit 1 and authorize the Town Manager to enter into the agreement in the Town’s behalf.

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
passage and approval. '

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13" day of March, 2023,

Mayor
ATTEST:

Town Clerk



Exhibit 1 to Resolution
Lease and Operating agreement

This agreement is entered into as of April 1, 2023, by and between The Dolores Community Center
Association, a Colorado Non-Profit Corporation (Association) whose address is PO Box 324,
Dolores, CO 81321, and the TOWN OF DOLORES (hereinafter referred to as the “Town”), whose
address is P.0. Box 630, Dolores, CO 81323.

This agreement between the Town and the Association is intended as a lease of the real property
located at 400 Riverside Ave, Dolores, CO 81323, descried in that deed recorded at Book 470, page
8 in the real estate records of Montezuma County, Colorado (subject property).

NOW THEREFORE, hereto, with intention of being legally bound, the parties’ contract and agree
as follows: %

L.

The Association leases the subject property to the Town of Doléres for the term of one year
commencing April 1, 2023 and ending March 31, 2024 for the sum of $10.00, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is acknowledged.

The Town shall maintain a policy of casualty and Iiability insurance on the premises, the cost
of which shall be reimbursed by the Association within 15 days of delivery of a written
request by Town.

_ The Association shall operate the community center for the benefit of the public in the same

manner and in accordance with the same practices, policies and procedure it has in place on
March 31, 2023 through the term of this lease in order to continue to provide services to the
public The Association may keep any excess revenue generate and shall be solely responsible
to cover any losses from its reserves.

The Association shall maintain the p'rbperty,‘ in good condition during the term of this lease
and shall be solely responsible for the cost of all repairs and maintenance.

The Association shall maintain its tax exempt status during the term of this lease.

The Association hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers,
cmployees, agents or servants from any and all suits, actions and claims of every nature and
description caused by, arising from or on account of any act or omission of Association, or
of any other person or entity for whose act or omission the Association is liable, with respect
to the operation of the community center (the "Claims"); and shall pay any and all judgments
rendered against the Town as the result of any suit, action or claim, together with all
reasonable expenses and attorney fees incurred by the Town in defending any such suit,
action or claim arising out of or related to ant Claims.

This agreement may be terminated by either party at any time by giving 30 day’s written
notice to the other.

The parties may mutually agree to extend this lease after the expiration of the initial term in



writing subject to approval by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Dolores. Absent such
extension, possession shall be deemed to have been fully restored free form the terms of this
lease to the Association.

Town Manager Authorized agent for  Dolores
Community Center Association



Z?Kg 20D [}W\omcznb@ﬁn @yb@j

Ceivessaianenna

» ) Recepti;m Noa‘???{5 ....... \)QQKFD'Q-CDN'PP .

ecorder,

o

. i!ecorder's Stamp
Ta1s DEED, Made this day of
19 76 ,between’ MONTELORES POST NO. 69, INC. a/k/a ‘
MONTELORES POST NO. 69 American Legibn, a 470
Colorado Non-Profit Corporation, 800K PAGE 88
a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Colorado » of the first part, and State Documentary Fee
DOLORES COMMUNITY CENTER ASSOCIATION, A Date &Mt&ﬁ_gfa 197
Colorado Non-Profit Corporation 11 ;*-”'EF !
b T AW - SRR
& corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws Total Consideration .._.._,
of the State of Colorado , of the sccond part, -
WITNESS, That the said party of the first part, for and in consideration of the sum of
Ten Dollars and other good and valuable consideration DREBARSK
to the said party of the first part in hand paid by the said party of the second part, the receipt whereof is hereby
- confessed and-acknowledged; hith remised, relowssd, goid, coriveyed and QUTT CLAIMED, and by these presents doth
remise, release, sell, convey and QUIT CLAIM unto the said party of the second part, its successors and assigns
forever, all the right, title, interest, claim and demand which the said party of the first part hath in and to the
following deseribed situate, lying and being in the County of Montezuma

and State of Colorado, towit: A tract of land in the Northeast Quarter of Section
16, Township 37 North, Range 15 West, N.M.P.M., Montezuma County,
Colorado, described as follows: Beginning at a point on the Morth
line of said Section 16, North 89°52' West 445.8 feet from the :
Northeast Corrier of said Section; thence South 11°00' East 30.6 i
feet to the point of beginning of the tract; thence: continuing
|South 11°00' East 190.0 feet, more or less, to the north bank of
|| the Dolores River; thence, South 87°06' West 185.6 feet along the
||north bank of the Dolores River; thence, North 11°00' west 200.0
feet, more or less; thence, South 89°52' East 187.2 feet to the
point of beginning of said tract. SUBJECT TO EXHIBIT A ANNEXED
HERETO AND INCORPORATED INTO THIS DEED BY REFERENCE.




“Y 4T M AU 1Y HOLD the same, together with all ang singular the appurtenances and privileges thereunto -
belonging, or in anywise thereunto appertaining, and all the-estate; right, title, interest and claim whatsoever, of the
sgld patty of the first part, either in law or equity, to the only proper use, henetit and behoof of the gaid party of the
second part, its 8uccessors and assigns forever,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The satd party of the first part hath caused its corporate name to bhe hereunto
subscribed by fts President, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, attented by its
Secretary, the day and year firgt above written,

I’JTONT'E'TEORES POST NO. 69, INC. a/k/
Montelores Post No. 69 American
Legion

.....

=
Yoo . ‘ 4
ik e Byl ;Q.,L.(_,:.d..f{—.;. ol
== Secerctary, ‘ Prenident.
. \\. .
4
SEAL
B.\V \
t
) )
STATE OF COLORADOQ, ' }
= 88,
...................................... County ofNonte"uma .
The foregoing instrument was. ackaowledged before ma this 23 dayof September
19 76 ,by Tharles F, Tobin as President and
George Green 1 as Secretary of

69, American Tegion
My commissjon expires 2 - 2 2 -9 7

Witncsg m_wh:;p:innm_l_'official seal. y {“ o C (
W Lo, fJ.ﬁvL"“M#"“‘ﬁsz.....
o Tt et L Nuliriy Bubile,
Fad Wit T
oo 6 ., !"‘- »

. ek . : "
I 3 G R SR

Montelores Post No. 69, Inc., a/k/a Montelores Post NO « corporation,

PSS
-

s
‘e

TRAG =T

.. '; v . . - ann
Pt e RS - ST s

No, 825, QVIT CLA-ISI-QEBD.-Comouuon'to Cnmuﬂo.n::ar;dlord Publishing Co., 1824-48 Stout Gireet, Denvet, Qolorado —2.74

Tm T — =



B0k 47{} mer 09

EXHIBIT A

In the event The Dolores Community Center Association and/or
the Town of Dolores fails to perform or exist, or that the
Community Building is not used for or as a public community
building as intended, and in the event the building is either
unused or used for purposes other than the intention, then the
title shall revert to the Dolores Legion, American Legion
Post #69, after a period of not to exceed two years and in
the event the American Legion Post #69 is not in exiztamzs
or not functioning, the same shall have an additional year
to organize and act as principal to this deed. The American
Legion Post #69 shall be entitled to suitable storage and
meeting space and to have access to the Dolores Community
Building for regular meetings which shall be guaranteed by
The Dolores Community Center Association.

T w3



ORDINANCE NO 563
SERIES 2023

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5 OF THE DOLORES MUNICIPAL CODE
PERTAINING TO BUSINESS LICENSES

WHEREAS, Colorado Revised Statutes, § 31-15-401 grants general police powers to the
Board of Trustees to promulgate ordinances for the health, safety, and welfare of the public,
including regulation of lands owned by the Town within its corporate boundaries.

WHEREAS, the Colorado General Assembly passed Senate Bill 22-032 which took effect

in 2023 and which changes the Town’s authority to charge a business license fee for certain types
of busginesses.

LAV SV RS Lt by

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees wishes to revised its Municipal Code to bring it into
compliance with recent changes in the law and make certain revisions to make the issuance of
business licenses more efficient and business friendly.

WHEREAS Title 5 of the Dolores Municipal Code pertains to the Town’s authority to issue
business licenses.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY TOWN OF DOLORES BOARD OF
TRUSTEES THAT Title 5 of the Dolores Municipal Code is amended as follows:

Section 1. The following definitions are added to the Section 5.04.020:

Incidental Physical Presence shall have the same meaning as that term is defined in CRS Section 39-
36-802.9 as amended.

Physical Presence shall have the same shall have the same meaning as that term is defined in CRS
Section 39-36-802.9 as amended.

Section 2. Section 5.04.10 is repealed and amended as follows:

A. It shall be unlawful for any person or entity fo conduct, engage in or establish a business or place
of business in the town, including a home occupation, without having first obtained a business
license. Additionally, certain businesses or business activities defined in this Article shall be subject
to special supplemental licensing requirements. A separate business license shall be required for
each place of business and, unless otherwise specifically provided on the license, a business license

shall expire one calendar year from the date issued, unless sooner revoked.

B. The Town of Dolores Board of Trustees has adopted a fee schedule for business licenses, which
may be amended from time 1o time by resolution. No fee will be charged 1o any business license
applicant who attests under oath and represents to the satisfaction of the Town Clerk that it does
not have a physical presence or only an incidental physical presence in the Town of Dolores as
defined by CRS Section 39-36-802.9.



C. A business license is required to operate a short-term rental in the Town of Dolores as further
defined in and regulated by the applicable provisions for short-term rental regulations set forth in
the Dolores Land Use Code as amended from time to time.

D. The Town Clerk may in their discretion waive the requirement for apply for a business
license for any person or entity that entirely lacks any physical presence in the Town of Dolores as
defined hy CRS Section 39-36-802.9 and which is not otherwise subject to regulation by the Dolores
Municipal Code.

E. A violation of this section shall be punished as set forth in section 1.12.010.

Section 3. The Town Trustees hereby finds, determine, and declare that this Ordinance is
promulgated under the general police power of the Town of Dolores, that it is promulgated for the
health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation
of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare. The Trustees further
determine that the ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper legislative object sought to be
attained.

Section 4. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of any such section, paragraph,
clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect . 2023 or thirty (30) days after final
publication whichever is later.

PUBLIC HEARING. This ordinance shall be considered for second or final reading on the
~ day of , 2023, in the Town Board Chambers in Town Hall, Dolores,
Colorado, at which time and piace aii persons may appear and be heard concerning the same.

Passed adopted and approved on the first reading this day of
2023.

DOLORES BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

By:

Mayor Leigh Reeves Attest:

By:

Town Clerk Tammy Neely



Passed adopted and approved on the second and final reading this day of
, 2023.

DOLORES BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

By:

Leigh Reeves

Afttest:

By:

Town Clerk Tammy Neely



Town of Dolores
Resolution No R522

Series 2023

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AWARD OF THE COLORADO
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REVITALIZING MAIN STREETS
OPPORTUNITY 2 (SMALL GRANTS) PROGRAM GRANT

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has identified the construction of a public restroom
facility in Flanders Park as a public improvement that will serve the citizens, businesses and
visitors to the Town of Dolores; and,

WHEREAS, Town of Dolores submitted and was awarded a $165,000 grant from the
Colorado Department of Transportation Revitalizing Main Streets Opportunity 2 (Small Grants)
Program, herein after “CDOT Revitalizing Main Streets grant” in order to fund a portion of the cost
of the Flanders Park restroom facilities; and,

WHEREAS, the Grant awarded requires acceptance of the terms and conditions set forth
in Exhibit A, attached hereto; and,

WHEREAS, as stated in the grant award, the Town agrees that it is responsible for
matching funds estimated to be a minimum of $16,500; and

WHEREAS, the Town understands that if the grant awarded is accepted, all funds received
under the grant must be spent by the deadline set forth in the grant conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to accept the terms and conditions of the grant.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR
THE TOWN OF DOLORES, COLORADO:

Section 1. The Board of Trustee accepts the award of the grant and terms and conditions
of the CDOT Revitalizing Main Streets grant set forth in Exhibit A and agrees to be bound by the
same;

Section 2. The Town Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents
and do all other things necessary on behalf of the Town to accept the CDOT Revitalizing Main
Streets grant on behalf of the Town, including but not limited to the Acknowledgment Affidavit
contained in Exhibit A;

Section 3. All action heretofore taken in furtherance of the purposes of the Grant
Application are hereby ratified and confirmed.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
passage and approval.



Section 6. This Resolution is intended to repeal and replace Resolution R-472, Series 2022
adopted on February 28, 2022,

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13* Day of March, 2023.

Mayor Leigh Reeves
ATTEST:

Town Clerk Tammy Neely



COLORADO

Department of Transportation
Division of Transportation Development

o?’ 9

Mutltimodal Planning Branch
2829 W. Howard P!l., Denver, CO 80204

Town of Dolores
02/23/2023
Ken Charles,

Congratulations. The Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) has reviewed the
application submitted by the Town of Dolores for the Revitalizing Main Streets (RMS)
Opportunity 2 funds. This letter provides the official notification for approval of the award.
This letter provides information regarding the execution of the grant. Please return the
signed affidavit after reading all materials shared with you.

Funds

The Town of Dolores’ Revitalizing Main Street Program project has been awarded funding, in
the funding amount of: $165,000.00. Please note the following detailed regarding these
funds:

1. This grant requires the use of your local match minimum amount: $16,500.00.

2. For the project being awarded funding, the allocation is for the reimbursement of
funds up to, and not to exceed, the RMS Funding Amount listed above. If project costs
overrun, exceeding the grant award and committed match, those costs are the
responsibility of the local agency, no additional RMS grant funds are guaranteed for
your project.

3. RMS funding operates on a reimbursable basis, therefore the grantee is required to
capture all invoices for work within the scope of the project as well as copies of proof
of payment for those invoices. Those will be submitted to CDOT along with the invoice
cover sheet for reimbursement. Note reimbursement is not immediate. Once the
invoices and cover sheets are validated to be accurate, the process for reimbursement
can take weeks to process. A CDOT Local Agency Billing Form is attached to this email.

Timeline:

The timeline for which your award has been granted is: 02/23/2023 to 11/30/2024. Please
note the following detailed regarding this timeline:

1. If delays arise that impact project readiness and subsequent project completion,
please reach out to us at minimum 4 months before your expiration date.

2. If an extension request is not submitted and approved within four months of the end
date of the Purchase Order, CDOT may not be able to extend the current contract.
This could result in a work stop period. In addition, CDOT reserves the right to remove
this award and reallocate funding to the next ranked application.

Next Steps

After reading the small grant terms & conditions and your Purchase Order document, ptease

return the signed affidavit before your project begins. In addition, determine your GO
X/ !
2829 W. Howard Place Denver, CO 80204-2305 P 303.757.9011 rodot.gov |rv="_ ,




' COLORADO
E @ | Department of Transportation

‘ Division of Transportation Development

organizational structure for keeping all records for this grant to ensure you can execute
successfully.

Please be prepared to complete a Close Out Report and submit ‘after’ images once the
project is completed.

Again, congratulations on your awarded project and we look forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

/

///M’“Q’ ==

Neysa Bermingham

Revitalizing Main Streets Grant Administer

Attachments:

Purchase Order

Billing Invoice

Small Dollar Grant Terms & Conditions
Affidavit

Close Out Report

2829 W. Howard Place Denver, CO 80204-2305 P 303.757.9011 codot.gov |




COLORADO
E "% | Department of Transportation
Town of Dolores Flanders Park Restroom
411034619 March 13, 2023

Acknowledgement of Recelpt

On behalf of the grantee agency, the undersigned acknowledges receipt of the Small Grant
Terms & Conditions and the Purchase Order for the CDOT Revitalizing Main Streets grant for
which my agency has been approved. | have read both documents and understand the terms
and conditions of the grant. I further understand the scope of project work cannot commence
prior to the issuance and receipt of the CDOT Purchase Order, in addition the work must be
completed before the CDOT Purchase Order end date.

., March 13, 2023

Ken Charles Town Manager

Role (in relation to grantee agency)

Proof of Accountability
.Contracted

I am employed, contracted or volunteer for the

I am over the age of 18 and have been delegated to be accountable for this grant on behalf of the
grantee. The is:

420 Central Avenue, PO Box 630, Dolores, CO 81323




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

third parties, if any, engaged by Grantee to aid in performance of the Work; (1) “Subrecipient’
means a non-Federal entity that receives a sub-award from a Recipient to carry out part of a
program, but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such program; (m)
“Uniform Guidance” means the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, identified as the
2 C.F.R. (Code of Federal Regulations) Part 200, commonly known as the “Super Circular,”
which supersedes requirements from OMB Circulars A-21, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-89, A-102,
and A-133, and the guidance in Circular a-50 on Single Audit Act follow-up; and (n) “Work"
means the goods delivered or services, or both, performed pursuant to this Agreement and
identified as Line ltems on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award.

5. Delivery. Grantee shall furnish the Work in strict accordance with the specifications and price
set forth in this Agreement. The State shall have no liability to compensate Grantee for the
performance of any Work not specifically set forth in the Agreement.

6. Rights to Materials. [Not Applicable to Agreements issued either in whole in part for
Information Technology, as defined in CRS § 24-37.5-102(2); in which case Addendum
1 §2 applies in lieu of this section.] Unless specifically stated otherwise in this Agreement,
all materials, including without limitation supplies, equipment, documents, content,
information, or other material of any type, whether tangible or intangible (collectively
“Materials”), furnished by the State to Grantee or deiivered by Graniee to the State in
performance of its obligations under this Agreement shall be the exclusive property the
State. Grantee shall return or deliver all Materials to the State upon completion or
termination of this Agreement.

7. Grantee Records. Grantee shall make, keep, maintain, and allow inspection and monitoring
by the State of a complete file of all records, documents, communications, notes and other
written materials, electronic media files, and communications, pertaining in any manner to
the Work (including, but not limited to the operation of programs) petformed under this
Agreement (collectively “Grantee Records”). Unless otherwise specified by the State, the
Grantee shall retain Grantee Records for a period (the “Record Retention Period”) of three
years following the date of submission to the State of the final expenditure report, or if this
Award is renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of each quarterly or
annual report, respectively. If any litigation, claim, or audit related to this Award starts before
expiration of the Record Retention Period, the Record Retention Period shall extend until all
litigation, claims or audit finding have been resolved and final action taken by the State or
Federal Awarding Agency. The Federal Awarding Agency, a cognizant agency for audit,
oversight, or indirect costs, and the State, may notify Grantee in writing that the Record
Retention Period shall be extended. For records for real property and equipment, the Record
Retention Period shall extend three years following final disposition of such property.
Grantee shall permit the State, the federal government, and any other duly authorized agent
of a governmental agency to audit, inspect, examine, excerpt, copy and transcribe Grantee
Records during the Record Retention Period. Grantee shall make Grantee Records available
during normal business hours at Grantee'’s office or place of business, or at other mutually
agreed upon times or locations, upon no fewer than two Business Days’ notice from the
State, unless the State determines that a shorter period of notice, or no notice, is necessary
to protect the interests of the State. The State, in its discretion, may monitor Grantee's
performance of its obligations under this Agreement using procedures as determined by the
State. The federal government and any other duly authorized agent of a governmental

Page 2 of 8

Effective Date; 7/1/2022




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

agency, in its discretion, Grantee shall allow the State to perform all monitoring required by
the Uniform Guidance, based on the State’s risk analysis of Grantee and this Agreement,
and the State shall have the right, in its discretion, to change its monitoring procedures and
requirements at any time during the term of this Agreement. The State will monitor Grantee's
performance in a manner that does not unduly interfere with Grantee’s performance of the
Work. Grantee shall promptly submit to the State a copy of any final audit report of an audit
performed on Grantee Records that relates to or affects this Agreement or the Work, whether
the audit is conducted by Grantee, a State agency or the State’s authorized representative,
or a third party. If applicable, the Grantee may be required to perform a single audit under 2
CFR 200.501, et seq. Grantee shall submit a copy of the results of that audit to the State
within the same timelines as the submission to the federal government.

Reporting. If Grantee is served with a pleading or other document in connection with an
action before a court or other administrative decision making body, and such pleading or
document relates to this Agreement or may affect Grantee’s ability to perform its obligations
under this Agreement, Grantee shall, within 10 days after being served, notify the State of
such action and deliver copies of such pleading or document to the State. Grantee shall
disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to the State and the Federal Awarding Agency, all
violations of federal or State criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations
notentially affecting the Award. The State or the Federal Awarding Agency may impose any
penalties for noncompliance allowed under 2 CFR Part 180 and 31 U.S.C. 3321, which may
include, without limitation, suspension or debarment.

Conflicts of Interest. Grantee acknowledges that with respect to this Agreement, even the
appearance of a conflict of interest is harmful to the State’s interests. Absent the State’s prior
written approval, Grantee shall refrain from any practices, activities, or relationships that
reasonably may appear to be in conflict with the full performance of Grantee’s obligations to
the State under this Agreement. If a conflict or appearance of a conflict of interest exists, or if
Grantee is uncertain as to such, Grantee shall submit to the State a disclosure statement
setting forth the relevant details for the State's consideration. Failure to promptly submit a
disclosure statement or to follow the State's direction in regard to the actual or apparent
conflict constitutes a breach of this Agreement. Grantee certifies that to their knowledge, no
employee of the State has any personal or beneficial interest whatsoever in the service or
property described in this Agreement, Grantee has no interest and shall not acquire any
interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance
of Grantee’s Services and Grantee shall not employ any person having such known
interests. Grantee acknowledges that all State employees are subject to the ethical principles
described in §24-18-105, C.R.S. Grantee further acknowledges that State employees may
be subject to the requirements of §24-18-105, C.R.S. with regard to this Grant.

10.Taxes. The State is exempt from federal excise taxes and from State and local sales and

11.

use taxes. The State shall not be liable for the payment of any excise, sales, of use taxes
imposed on Grantee. A tax exemption certificate will be made available upon Grantee's
request. Grantee shall be solely responsible for any exemptions from the collection of excise,
sales or use taxes that Grantee may wish to have in place in connection with this
Agreement.

Payment. Payments to Grantee are limited to the unpaid, obligated balance of the Grant
Funds. The State shall not pay Grantee any amount under this Agreement that exceeds the

Page 3of 8
Effactive Date; 7/1/2022




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

Document Total shown on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award. The State shall pay
Grantee in the amounts and in accordance with the schedule and other conditions set forth
in this Agreement. Grantee shall initiate payment requests by invoice to the State, in a form
and manner approved by the State. The State shall pay Grantee for all amounts due within
45 days after receipt of an Awarding Agency's approved invoicing request, or in instances of
reimbursement grant programs a request for reimbursement, compliant with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and, if applicable Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) of amount requested. Amounts not paid by the State within 45
days of the State’s acceptance of the invoice shall bear interest on the unpaid balance
beginning on the 45th day at the rate set forth in CRS §24-30-202(24) until paid in full.
Interest shall not accrue if a good faith dispute exists as to the State’s obligation to pay all or
a portion of the amount due. Grantee shall invoice the State separately for interest on
delinquent amounts due, referencing the delinquent payment, number of day’s interest to be
paid, and applicable interest rate. The acceptance of an invoice shall not constitute
acceptance of any Work performed under this Agreement. Except as specifically agreed in
this Agreement, Grantee shall be solely responsible for all costs, expenses, and other
charges it incurs in connection with its performance under this Grantee.

12.Term. The parties’ respective performances under this Agreement shall commence on the
“Service From” date identified on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award, unless otherwise
specified, and shall terminate on the “Service To” date identified on the face of the Small
Dollar Grant Award unless sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement,

13.Payment Disputes. If Grantee disputes any calculation, determination or amount of any
payment, Grantee shall notify the State in writing of its dispute within 30 days following the
earlier to occur of Grantee’s receipt of the payment or notification of the determination or
calcuiation of the payment by the State. The State wili review the information presented by
Grantee and may make changes to its determination based on this review. The calculation,
determination or payment amount that results from the State’s review shall not be subject to
additional dispute under this subsection. No payment subject to a dispute under this
subsection shall be due until after the State has concluded its review, and the State shall not
pay any interest on any amount during the period it is subject to dispute under this
subsection.

14.Matching Funds. Grantee shall provide Matching Funds, if required by this Agreement. If
permitted under the terms of the grant and per this Agreement, Grantee may be permitted to
provide Matching Funds prior to or during the course of the project or the match will be an
in-kind match. Grantee shall report to the State regarding the status of such funds upon
request. Grantee’s obligation to pay all or any part of any Matching Funds, whether direct or
contingent, only extend to funds duly and lawfully appropriated for the purposes of this
Agreement by the authorized representatives of Grantee and paid into Grantee's treasury or
bank account. Grantee represents to the State that the amount designated “Grantee’s
Matching Funds” pursuant to this Agreement, has been legally appropriated for the purposes
of this Agreement by its authorized representatives and paid into its freasury or bank
account. Grantee does not by this Agreement irrevocably pledge present cash reserves for
payments in future fiscal years, and this Agreement is not intended to create a multiple-fiscal
year debt of Grantee. Grantee shall not pay or be liable for any claimed interest, late

Page 4 of 8

Effective Date: 7/1/2022




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

charges, fees, taxes or penalties of any nature, except as required by Grantee's laws or
policies.

15.Reimbursement of Grantee Costs. If applicable, the State shall reimburse Grantee'’s
allowable costs, not exceeding the maximum total amount described in this Agreement for all
allowable costs described in the grant except that Grantee may adjust the amounts between
each line item of the Budget without formal modification to this Agreement as long as the
Grantee provides notice to, and received approval from the State of the change, the change
does not modify the total maximum amount of this Agreement, and the change does not
modify any requirements of the Work. If applicable, the State shall reimburse Grantee for the
properly documented allowable costs related to the Work after review and approval thereof,
subject to the provisions of this Agreement. However, any costs incurred by Grantee prior to
the Effective Date shall not be reimbursed absent specific allowance of pre-award costs.
Grantee’s costs for Work performed after the “Service To” date identified on the face of the
Small Dollar Grant Award, or after any phase performance period end date for a respective
phase of the Work, shall not be reimbursable. The State shall only reimburse allowable costs
described in this Agreement and shown in the Budget if those costs are (a) reasonable and
necessary to accomplish the Work, and (b) equal to the actual net cost to Grantee (i.e. the
price paid minus any items of value received by Grantee that reduce the costs actually
incurred).

16.Close-Out. Grantee shall close out this Award within 45 days after the “Service To” date
identified on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award, including any modifications. To
complete close-out, Grantee shall submit to the State all deliverables (including
documentation) as defined in this Agreement and Grantee's final reimbursement request or
invoice. In accordance with the Agreement, the State may withhold a percentage of
allowable costs until all final documentation has been submitted and accepted by the State
as substantially complete.

17.Assighment. Grantee’s rights and obligations under this Agreement may not be transferred
or assigned without the prior, written consent of the State and execution of a new agreement.
Any attempt at assignment or transfer without such consent and new agreement shall be
void. Any assignment or transfer of Grantee’s rights and obligations approved by the State
shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

.Subcontracts. Crantee shall not enter into any subcontract in connection with its obligations
under this Agreement without the prior, written approval of the State. Grantee shall submit to
the State a copy of each subcontract upon request by the State. All subcontracts entered
into by Grantee in connection with this Agreement shall comply with all applicable federal
and state laws and regulations, shall provide that they are governed by the laws of the State
of Colorado, and shall be subject to all provisions of this Agreement.

19. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall
remain in full force and effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform their
obligations in accordance with the intent of the Agreement.

20.Survival of Certain Agreement Terms. Any provision of this Agreement that imposes an
obligation on a party after termination or expiration of the Agreement shall survive the
termination or expiration of the Agreement and shall be enforceable by the other party.

-
co

Page 50f 8

Effactive Date; 7/1/2022




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

21.Third Party Beneficiaries. Except for the parties’ respective successors and assigns, this
Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or
entity other than the Parties. Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and obligations
hereunder are reserved solely to the parties. Any services or benefits which third parties
receive as a result of this Agreement are incidental to the Agreement, and do not create any
rights for such third parties.

22 Waiver. A party’s failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this
Agreement, whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, shall not operate as a waiver, nor
shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or
further exercise of such right, power, or privilege.

23.Indemnification. [Not Applicable to Inter-governmental agreements] Grantee shall
indemnify, save, and hold harmiess the State, its employees, agents and assignees (the
“Indemnified Parties”), against any and all costs, expenses, claims, damages, liabilities, court
awards and other amounts (including attorneys’ fees and related costs) incurred by any of
the Indemnified Parties in relation to any act or omission by Grantee, or its employees,
agents, Subcontractors, or assignees in connection with this Agreement. This shall include,
without limitation, any and all costs, expenses, claims, damages, liabilities, court awards and
other amounts incurred by the Indemnified Parties in relation to any claim that any work
infringes a patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret, or any other inteliectual property right
or any claim for loss or improper disclosure of any confidential information or personally
identifiable information. If Grantee is a public agency prohibited by applicable law from
indemnifying any party, then this section shall not apply.

24.Notice. All notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered to
the contacts for each party listed on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award. Either party
may change its contact or contact information by notice submitted in accordance with this
section without a formal modification to this Agreement.

25.Insurance. Except as otherwise specifically stated in this Agreement or any attachment or
exhibit to this Agreement, Grantee shall obtain and maintain insurance as specified in this
section at all times during the term of the Agreement: (a) workers’ compensation insurance
as required by state statute, and employers’ liability insurance covering all Grantee
employees acting within the course and scope of their employment, (b) Commercial general
liability insurance written on an Insurance Services Office occurrence form, covering
premises operations, fire damage, independent vendors, products and completed
operations, blanket contractual liability, personal injury, and advertising liability with minimum
limits as follows: $1,000,000 each occurrence; $1,000,000 general aggregate; $1,000,000
products and completed operations aggregate; and $50,000 any one fire, and (c) Automaobile
liability insurance covering any auto (including owned, hired and non-owned autos) with a
minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident combined single limit. If Grantee will or may have
access to any protected information, then Grantee shall also obtain and maintain insurance
covering loss and disclosure of protected information and claims based on alleged violations
of privacy right through improper use and disclosure of protected information with limits of
$1,000,000 each occurrence and $1,000,000 general aggregate at all times during the term
of the Small Dollar Grant Award. Additional insurance may be required as provided
elsewhere in this Agreement or any attachment or exhibit to this Agreement. All insurance
policies required by this Agreement shall be issued by insurance companies with an AM Best

Page 6 of 8
Effactive Date: 7/1/2022




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

rating of A-VIIl or better. If Grantee is a public agency within the meaning of the Colorado
Governmental Immunity Act, then this section shall not apply and Grantee shall instead
comply with the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. The State shall be named as
additional insured on all commercial general liability policies required of Vendor. All
insurance policies secured or maintained by Vendor in relation to this Purchase Order shall
include clauses stating that each carrier shall waive all rights of recovery under subrogation
or otherwise against Vendor or the State, its agencies, institutions, organizations, officers,
agents, employees, and volunteers.

26.Termination Prior to Grantee Acceptance. If Grantee has not begun performance under
this Agreement, the State may cancel this Agreement by providing written notice to the
Grantee.

27.Termination for Cause. if Grantee refuses or faiis io timely and properly perform any of its
obligations under this Agreement with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the
time specified in this Agreement, the State may notify Grantee in writing of non-performance
and, if not corrected by Grantee within the time specified in the notice, terminate Grantee’s
right to proceed with the Agreement or such part thereof as to which there has been delay or
a failure. Grantee shall continue performance of this Agreement to the extent not terminated.
Grantee shall be liable for excess costs incurred by the State in procuring similar Work and
the State may withhold such amounts, as the State deems necessary. if after rejection,
revocation, or other termination of Grantee’s right to proceed under the Colorado Uniform
Commercial Code (CUCC) or this clause, the State determines for any reason that Grantee
was not in default or the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the State and
Grantee shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to
termination under §28.

28.Termination in Public Interest. The State is entering into this Agreement for the purpose of
carrying out the public interest of the State, as determined by its Governor, General
Assembly, Courts, or Federal Awarding Agency. If this Agreement ceases to further the
public interest of the State as determined by its Governor, General Assembly, Courts, or
Federal Awarding Agency, the State, in its sole discretion, may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part and such termination shall not be deemed to be a breach of the State’s
obligations hereunder. This section shall not apply to a termination for cause, which shall be
governed by §27. A determination that this Small Dollar Grant Award should be terminated in
the public interest shall not be equivalent to a State right to terminate for convenience. The
State shall give written notice of termination to Grantee specifying the part of the Agreement
terminated and when termination becomes effective. Upon receipt of notice of termination,
Grantee shall not incur further obligations except as necessary to mitigate costs of
performance. The State shall pay the Agreement price or rate for Work performed and
accepted by State prior to the effective date of the notice of termination. The State’s
termination liability under this section shall not exceed the total Agreement price.

29. Termination for Funds Availability. The State is prohibited by law from making
commitments beyond the term of the current State Fiscal Year. Payment to Grantee beyond
the current State Fiscal Year is contingent on the appropriation and continuing availability of
Grant Funds in any subsequent year (as provided in the Colorado Special Provisions). If
federal funds or funds from any other non-State funds constitute all or some of the Grant
Funds, the State's obligation to pay Grantee shall be contingent upon such non-State

Page 7 of 8
Effactive Date: 7/1/2022




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

funding continuing to be made available for payment. Payments to be made pursuant to this
Agreement shall be made only from Grant Funds, and the State’s liability for such payments
shall be limited to the amount remaining of such Grant Funds. If State, federal or other funds
are not appropriated, or otherwise become unavailable to fund this Agreement, the State
may, upon written notice, terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, without incurring
further liability. The State shall, however, remain obligated to pay for Work performed and
accepted prior to the effective date of notice of termination, and this termination shall
otherwise be treated as if this Agreement were terminated in the public interest as described
in §28.

30.Grantee’s Termination Under Federal Requirements. If the Grant Funds include any

31

federal funds, then Grantee may request termination of this Grant by sending notice to the
State, or to the Federal Awarding Agency with a copy to the State, which includes the
reasons for the termination and the effective date of the termination. If this Grant is
terminated in this manner, then Grantee shall return any advanced payments made for Work
that will not be performed prior to the effective date of the termination.

.Governmental Immunity. Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising from

the negligence of the State, its departments, boards, commissions committees, bureaus,
offices, employees and officials shall be controlled and limited by the provisions of the
Colorado Governmentai Immunity Act, CRS §24-10-101, et seq., the Federal Tort Claims
Act, 28 U.S.C. Pt. VI, Ch. 171 and 28 U.S.C. 1346(b), and the State’s risk management
statutes, CRS §§24-30-1501, et seq. No term or condition of this Agreement shall be
construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights,
benefits, protections, or other provisions, contained in these statutes.

32.Grant Recipient. Grantee shall perform its duties hereunder as a grant recipient and not as

an employee. Neither Grantee nor any agent or employee of Grantee shall be deemed to be
an agent or employee of the State. Grantee shall not have authorization, express or implied,
to bind the State to any agreement, liability or understanding, except as expressly set forth
herein. Grantee and its employees and agents are not entitled to unemployment
insurance or workers compensation benefits through the State and the State shall not
pay for or otherwise provide such coverage for Grantee or any of its agents or
employees. Grantee shall pay when due all applicable employment taxes and income
taxes and local head taxes incurred pursuant to this Agreement. Grantee shall (a)
provide and keep in force workers' compensation and unemployment compensation
insurance in the amounts required by law, (b) provide proof thereof when requested
by the State, and (c) be solely responsible for its acts and those of its employees and
agents.

33.Compliance with Law. Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and State laws,

rules, and regulations in effect or hereafter established, including, without limitation, laws
applicable to discrimination and unfair employment practices.

34.Choice of Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. [Not Applicable to Inter-governmental

agreements] Colorado law, and rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, shall be
applied in the interpretation, execution, and enforcement of this Agreement. Any provision
included or incorporated herein by reference which conflicts with said laws, rules, and
regulations shall be null and void. All suits or actions related to this Agreement shall be filed
and proceedings held in the State of Colorado and exclusive venue shall be in the City and

Page 8 of 8
Effective Date: 7/1/2022




State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions

County of Denver. Any provision incorporated herein by reference which purports to negate
this or any other provision in this Agreement in whole or in part shall not be valid or
enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of complaint, defense, or
otherwise. Any provision rendered null and void by the operation of this provision or for any
other reason shall not invalidate the remainder of this Agreement, to the extent capable of
execution. Grantee shall exhaust administrative remedies in CRS §24-109-106, prior to
commencing any judicial action against the State regardless of whether the Colorado
Procurement Code applies to this Agreement.

35.Prohibited Terms. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any
provision of CRS §24-106-109. Any term included in this Agreement that requires the State
to indemnify or hold Grantee harmless; requires the State to agree to binding arbitration;
limits Grantee’s liability for damages resulting from death, bedily injury, or damage te tangible
property; or that conflicts with that statute in any way shall be void ab initio.

Page9of 8

Effective Date: 7/1/2022




ADDENDUM 1:
Additional Terms & Conditions for Information Technology

IF ANY PART OF THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT IS INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY, AS DEFINED IN CRS § 24-37.5-102 (2), THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ALSO APPLY TO THIS AGREEMENT.,

A. Definitions. The following terms shall be construed and interpreted as follows: (a) “CJI’
means criminal justice information collected by criminal justice agencies needed for the
performance of their authorized functions, including, without limitation, all information
defined as criminal justice information by the U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau
of Investigation, Criminal Justice Information Services Security Policy, as amended, and
all Criminal Justice Records as defined under CRS §24-72-302; (b) “Incident” means
any accidental or deliberate event that results in or constitutes an imminent threat of the
unauthorized access, loss, disclosure, modification, disruption, or destruction of any
communications or information resources of the State, pursuant to CRS §§24-37.5-401 et
seq.; (c) "PCI" means payment card information including any data related to credit card
holders’ names, credit card numbers, or the other credit card information as may be
protected by state or federal law; (d) “PHI” means any protected health information,
including, without limitation any information whether oral or recorded in any form or
medium that relates to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an
individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present or future
payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and that identifies the individual
or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be
used to identify the individual including, without limitation, any information defined as
Individually Identifiable Health Information by the federal Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act; (e) “PII’ means personally identifiable information including, without
limitation, any information maintained by the State about an individual that can be used to
distinguish or trace an individual's identity, such as name, social security number, date
and place of birth, mother's maiden name, or biometric records, including, without
limitation, all information defined as personally identifiable information in CRS
§24-72-501. . “PlI” shall also mean “personal identifying information” as set forth at §
24-74-102, et. seq., C.R.S. ; (f) “State Confidential Information” means any and all
State Records not subject to disclosure under the Colorado Open Records Act and
includes, without limitation, Pli, PHI, PCI, Tax Information, CJI, and State personnel
records not subject to disclosure under the Colorado Open Records Act, (g) “State
Fiscal Rules” means those fiscal rules promulgated by the Colorado State Controller
pursuant fo CRS §24-30-202(13)(a); (h) “State Fiscal Year’ means a 12 month period
beginning on July 1 of each calendar year and ending on June 30 of the following
calendar year; (i) “State Records” means any and all State data, information, and
records, regardless of physical form; {j) “Tax Information™ means federal and State of
Colorado tax information including, without limitation, federal and State tax returns, return
information, and such other tax-related information as may be protected by federal and
State law and regulation, including, without limitation all information defined as federal tax
information in Internal Revenue Service Publication 1075; and (k) “Work Product’
means the tangible and intangible results of the delivery of goods and performance of
services, whether finished or unfinished, including drafts. Work Product includes, but is
not limited to, documents, text, software (including source code), research, reports,

Addendum 1 -Page 1 0of 6

Effactive Date: 7/1/2022




ADDENDUM 1:
Additional Terms & Conditions for Information Technology

proposals, specifications, plans, notes, studies, data, images, photographs, negatives,
pictures, drawings, designs, models, surveys, maps, materials, ideas, concepts,
know-how, information, and any other results of the Work, but does not include any
material that was developed prior to the Effective Date that is used, without modification,
in the performance of the Work.

B. Intellectual Property. Except to the extent specifically provided elsewhere in this
Agreement, any State information, including without limitation pre-existing State software,
research, reports, studies, data, photographs, negatives or other documents, drawings, models,
materials; or Work Product prepared by Grantee in the performance of its obligations under this
Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the State (collectively, “State Materials”). All State
Materials shall be delivered to the State by Grantee upon completion or termination of this
Agreement. The State’s exclusive rights in any Work Product prepared by Grantee shall include,
but not be limited to, the right to copy, publish, display, transfer, and prepare derivative works.
Grantee shall not use, willingly allow, cause or permit any State Materials to be used for any
purpose other than the performance of Grantee’s obligations hereunder without the prior written
consent of the State. The State shall maintain complete and accurate records relating to (a) its
use of all Grantee and third party software licenses and rights to use any Grantee or third party
software granted under this Agreement and its attachments to which the State is a party and (b)
all amounts payable to Grantee pursuant to this Agreement and its attachments and the State’s
obligations under this Agreement or any amounts payable to Grantee in relation to this
Agreement, which records shall contain sufficient information to permit Grantee to confirm the
State’s compliance with the use restrictions and payment obligations under this Agreement or to
any third party use restrictions to which the State is a party. Grantee retains the exclusive rights,
title and ownership to any and all pre-existing materials owned or licensed to Grantee including,
but not limited to all pre-existing software, licensed products, associated source code, machine
code, text images, audio, video, and third party materials, delivered by Grantee under the
Agreement, whether incorparated in a deliverable or necessary to use a deliverable (collectively,
“Grantee Property”). Grantee Property shall be licensed to the State as set forth in a
State-approved license agreement (a) entered into as exhibits or attachments to this
Agreement, (b) obtained by the State from the applicable third party Grantee, or (c) in the case
of open source software, the license terms set forth in the applicable open source license
agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the State shall not be subject to
any provision incorporated in any exhibit or attachment attached hereto, any provision
incorporated in any terms and conditions appearing on any website, any provision incorporated
into any click through or online agreements, or any provision incorporated into any other
document or agreement between the parties that (a) requires the State or the State to indemnify
Grantee or any other party, (b) is in violation of State laws, regulations, rules, State Fiscal Rules,
policies, or other State requirements as deemed solely by the State, or (c) is contrary to this
Agreement.

C. Information Confidentiality. Grantee shall keep confidential, and cause all
Subcontractors to keep confidential, all State Records, unless those State Records are publicly
available. Grantee shall not, without prior written approval of the State, use, publish, copy,
disclose to any third party, or permit the use by any third party of any State Records, except as
otherwise stated in this Agreement, permitted by law, or approved in writing by the State. If

Addendum 1 - Page 2 of 6
Effective Date: 7/1/2022




ADDENDUM 1:
Additional Terms & Conditions for Information Technology

Grantee will or may have access to any State Confidential Information or any other protected
information, Grantee shall provide for the security of all State Confidential Information in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules, policies, publications, and guidelines. Grantee shall
comply with all Colorade Office of Information Security (“OlS”") policies and procedures which
OIS has issued pursuant to CRS §§24 37. 5-401 through 406 and 8 CCR §1501 -5 and posted at

DV/s . : , all information
securlty and prlvacy obllgat|ons |mposed by any federal, state or local statute or regulation, or
by any industry standards or guidelines, as applicable based on the classification of the data
relevant to Grantee’s performance under this Agreement. Such obligations may arise from:
Health Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA); IRS Publication 1075; Payment
Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI-DSS); FBI Criminal Justice Information Service
Security Addendum; Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Minimum Acceptable
Risk Standards for Exchanges; and Electronic Information Exchange Security Requirements
and Procedures for State and Local Agencies Exchanging Electronic Information with The
Social Security Administration. Grantee shall immediately forward any request or demand for
State Records to the State’s principal representative.

D. Other Entity Access and Nondisclosure Agreements. Grantee may provide State
Records to its agents, employees, assigns and Subcontractors as necessary to perform the
work, but shall restrict access to State Confidential Information to those agents, employees,
assigns, and Subcontractors who require access to perform their obligations under this
Agreement. Grantee shall ensure all such agents employees, assigns, and Subcontractors sign
agreements containing nondisclosure provisions at least as protective as those in this
Agreement and that the nondisclosure provisions are in force at all times the agent, employee,
assign, or Subcontractors has access to any State Confidential Information. Grantee shall
provide copies of those signed nondisclosure provisions to the State upon execution of the
nondisclosure provisions if requested by the State.

E. Use, Security, and Retention. Grantee shall use, hold, and maintain State Confidential
Information in compliance with any and all applicable laws and regulations only in facilities
located within the United States, and shall maintain a secure environment that ensures
confidentiality of all State Confidential information. Grantee shall provide the State with access,
subject to Grantee’s reasonable security requirements, for purposes of inspecting and
monitoring access and use of State Confidential Information and evaluating security control
effectiveness. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Grantee shall return State
Records provided to Grantee or destroy such State Records and certify to the State that it has
done so, as directed by the State. If Grantee is prevented by law or regulation from returning or
destroying State Confidential Information, Grantee warrants it will guarantee the confidentiality
of, and cease to use, such State Confidential Information.

F. Incident Notice and Remediation. If Grantee becomes aware of any Incident, it shall
notify the State immediately and cooperate with the State regarding recovery, remediation, and
the necessity to involve law enforcement, as determined by the State. Unless Grantee can
establish none of Grantee or any of its agents, employees, assigns or Subcontractors are the
cause or source of the Incident, Grantee shall be responsible for the cost of notifying each
person who may have been impacted by the Incident. After an Incident, Grantee shall take steps
to reduce the risk of incurring a similar type of Incident in the future as directed by the State,

Addendum 1 - Page 3 of 6
Effective Date: 7/1/2022




ADDENDUM 1:
Additional Terms & Conditions for Information Technology

which may include, but is not limited to, developing and implementing a remediation plan that is
approved by the State at no additional cost to the State. The State may adjust or direct
modifications to this plan, in its sole discretion and Grantee shall make all modifications as
directed by the State. If Grantee cannot produce its analysis and plan within the allotted time,
the State, in its sole discretion, may perform such analysis and produce a remediation plan, and
Grantee shall reimburse the State for the reasonable actual costs thereof.

G. Data Protection and Handling. Grantee shall ensure that all State Records and Work
Product in the possession of Grantee or any Subcontractors are protected and handled in
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement at all times. Upon request by the State
made any time prior to 60 days following the termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whether or not this Agreement is expiring or terminating, Grantee shall make available to the
State a complete and secure download file of all data that is encrypted and appropriately
authenticated. This download file shall be made available to the State within 10 Business Days
following the State’s request, and shall contain, without limitation, all State Records, Work
Product, and any other information belonging to the State. Upon the termination of Grantee’s
services under this Agreement, Grantee shall, as directed by the State, return all State Records
provided by the State to Grantee, and the copies thereof, to the State or destroy all such State
Records and certify to the State that it has done so. If legal obligations imposed upon Grantee
prevent Grantee from returning or destroying all or part of the State Records provided by the
State, Grantee shall guarantee the confidentiality of all State Records in Grantee’s possession
and will not actively process such data. The State retains the right to use the established
operational services to access and retrieve State Records stored on Grantee's infrastructure at
its sole discretion and at any time.

H. Compliance. If applicable, Grantee shall review, on a semi-annual basis, all OIS policies
and procedures which OIS has promulgated pursuant to CRS §§ 24-37.5-401 through 406 and
8 CCR § 1501-5 and posted at

hitps://oit.colorad v/standards-polici i i , to ensure
compliance with the standards and guidelines published therein. Grantee shall cooperate, and
shall cause its Subcontractors to cooperate, with the performance of security audit and
penetration tests by OIS or its designee.

|. Safeguarding PII. If Grantee or any of its Subcontractors will or may receive PIl under
this Agreement, Grantee shall provide for the security of such PIl, in a manner and form
acceptabie to the State, inciuding, without limitation, all State requirements relating to
non-disclosure, use of appropriate technology, security practices, computer access
security, data access security, data storage encryption, data transmission encryption,
security inspections, and audits. Grantee shall take full responsibility for the security of all
PH in its possession or in the possession of its Subcontractors, and shall hold the State
harmless for any damages or liabilities resuiting from the unauthorized disclosure or loss
thereof. Grantee shall be a “Third-Party Service Provider” as defined in CRS
§24-73-103(1)(i) and shall maintain security procedures and practices consistent with
CRS §§24-73-101 et seq. In addition, as set forth in § 24-74-102, et. seq., C.R.S,,
Vendor, including, but not limited to, Vendor's employees, agents and Subcontractors,
agrees not to share any PIl with any third parties for the purpose of investigating for,
participating in, cooperating with, or assisting with Federal immigration enforcement. If

Addendum 1 -Page 4 of 6
Effective Date; 7/1/2022 |




ADDENDUM 1:
Additional Terms & Conditions for Information Technology

Vendor is given direct access to any State databases containing Pll, Vendor shall
execute, on behalf of itself and its employees, the certification P|| Individual Certification
Form or Pl Entity Ceriification Form [Download form from Hyperlink] on an annual basis
and Vendor's duty shall continue as long as Vendor has direct access to any State
databases containing PIl. If Vendor uses any Subcontractors to perform services
requiring direct access to State databases containing Pll, the Vendor shall require such
Subcontractors to execute and deliver the certification to the State on an annual basis, so
long as the Subcontractor has access to State databases containing PII.

J. Software Piracy Prohibition. The State or other public funds payable under this
Agreement shall not be used for the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer
software in violation of federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions. Grantee hereby
certifies and warrants that, during the term of this Agreement and any extensions, Grantee has
and shall maintain in place appropriate systems and controls to prevent such improper use of
public funds. If the State determines that Grantee is in violation of this provision, the State may
exercise any remedy available at law or in equity or under this Agreement, including, without
limitation, immediate termination of this Agreement and any remedy consistent with federal
copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions.

K. Information Technology. To the extent that Grantee provides physical or logical storage
of State Records; Grantee creates, uses, processes, discloses, transmits, or disposes of State
Records: or Grantee is otherwise given physical or logical access to State Records in order to
perform Grantee's obligations under this Agreement, the following terms shall apply. Grantee
shall, and shall cause its Subcontractors, to: Provide physical and logical protection for all
hardware, software, applications, and data that meets or exceeds industry standards and the
requirements of this Agreement; Maintain network, system, and application security, which
includes, but is not limited to, network firewalls, intrusion detection (host and network), annual
security testing, and improvements or enhancements consistent with evolving industry
standards; Comply with State and federal rules and regulations related to overall security,
privacy, confidentiality, integrity, availability, and auditing; Provide that security is not
compromised by unauthorized access to workspaces, computers, networks, software,
databases, or other physical or electronic environments; Promptly report all Incidents, including
Incidents that do not result in unauthorized disclosure or loss of data integrity, to a designated
representative of the OIS; Comply with all rules, policies, procedures, and standards issued by
the Governor's Office of Information Technology (OIT), including project lifecycle methodology
and governance, technical standards, documentation, and other requirements posted at
https://oit.colorado,gov/standards-policies-quides/technical-standards-policies. Grantee shall not
allow remote access to State Records from outside the United States, including access by
Grantee’s employees or agents, without the prior express written consent of OIS. Grantee shall
communicate any request regarding non-U.S. access to State Records to the State. The State,
acting by and through OIS, shall have sole discretion to grant or deny any such request.

L. Accessibility. Grantee shall comply with and the Work Product provided under this PO
shall be in compliance with all applicable provisions of §§24-85-101, et seq., C.R.S., and
the Accessibility Standards for Individuals with a Disability, as established by OIT pursuant to
Section §24-85-103 (2.5), C.R.S. Grantee shall also comply with all State of Colorado
technology standards related to technology accessibility and with Level AA of the most current

Addendum 1 -Page 5 of 6
Effactive Date: 7/1/2022




ADDENDUM 1:
Additional Terms & Conditions for Information Technology

version of the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG), incorporated in the State of
Colorado technology standards. Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the
Indemnified Parties against any and all costs, expenses, claims, damages, liabilities, court
awards and other amounts (including attorneys’ fees and related costs) incurred by any of the
Indemnified Parties in relation to Grantee’s failure to comply with §§24-85-101, et seq., C.R.S,,
or the Accessibility Standards for Individuals with a Disability as established by OIT pursuant to
Section §24-85-103 (2.5), C.R.S. The State may require Grantee’s compliance to the State’s
Accessibility Standards to be determined by a third party selected by the State to aftest to
Grantee’s Work Product and software is in compliance with §§24-85-101, et seq., C.R.S., and
the Accessibility Standards for Individuals with a Disabilily as established by OIT pursuant to
Section §24-85-103 (2.5), C.R.S.

Addendum 1 - Page 6 of 6
Effactive Date: 7/1/2022




COLORADO
Department of Transportation

Pl

Acknowledgement of Receipt

On behalf of the grantee agency, the undersigned acknowledges receipt of the Small Grant
Terms & Conditions and the Purchase Order for the CDOT Revitalizing Main Streets grant for
which my agency has been approved. | have read both documents and understand the terms
and conditions of the grant. | further understand the scope of project work cannot commence
prior to the issuance and receipt of the CDOT Purchase Order, in addition the work must be
completed before the CDOT Purchase Order end date.

on

Proof of Accountability

| am employed, contracted or volunteer for the

I am over the age of 18 and have been delegated to be accountable for this grant on behalf of the
grantee. The is:




